4+~ Ruver PINEs PuBLic UTiLy DISTRICT 5

Wednesday, July 5,2017
ACTION MINUTES AGENDA ITEM 6

1. CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order by Chairman Landgraf at 5:34 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL/MEMBERS PRESENT:
Candi Bingham, General Manager
Director Cathy Landgraf
Director Rene’ Walden-Qualls
Director Anita Ebbinghausen
Director Michael Gardner
Director Richard Miller

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Chairman Landgraf led the Pledge of Allegiance.

4. AGENDA:
GM asked the Board of Directors to add Item 11(f) — Resolution 2017-03

M/S Gardner/Ebbinghausen to approve Agenda as amended with the following vote:

Motion carried 5-0 with the following vote:
AYES: Landgraf, Ebbinghausen, Gardner, Walden-Qualls, Miller.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT:  None

5. CLOSED MEETING July 5, 2017 - Board Chair Landgraf reported that there were no actions taken.

6. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
Nell Raymond — reminded everyone about the upcoming “River Pines Clean-Up Day” and asked for
volunteers.
Nancy Endy — Asked for clarification on the 6-million-dollar grant.
Steve Pongratz — inquired if grant talks were being held in open meetings. Board of Directors confirmed
that they were.
Steve Pongratz — asked which grants were currently being sought after by the District. Board of Directors
stated that just a construction grant for the Distribution project.

7. MINUTES:
Director Walden-Qualls — Correction:
Item J — change to 4:45

M/S Ebbinghausen/Gardner approve minutes as corrected with following vote:

Motion carried 5-0 with the mentioned change as follows:

Page [ of 3



AYES: Landgraf, Ebbinghausen, Gardner, Walden-Qualls, Miller.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None

8. Monthly Financial Report: M/S Walden-Qualls/Ebbinghausen as submitted with the following vote:

Motion Carried 5-0 with the following Vote:

AYES: Landgraf, Ebbinghausen, Gardner, Walden-Qualls, Miller
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

9. EXPENDITURE REPORT: Director Walden-Qualls stated she is tabling comments until the August
Board Meeting following reconciliation of the account.

M/S Gardner/Ebbinghausen approve with following vote:

Motion carried 5-0 with the following vote:

AYES: Landgraf, Ebbinghausen, Gardner, Walden-Qualls, Miller.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.

10. MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT.

A. Monthly Operations Report — See Report.
B. Monthly General Manager Report — See Report
11. BOARD MATTERS:

A. Land and Water Usage to River Pines Garden Club — Discussion and Possible Action
Chairman Landgraf asked to carry to the next Board Meeting to gather more information on how to
structure the land and water usage to the River Pines Garden Club.

B. Resolution No. 2017-02 — Establish Capital Reserves Account — Discussion and Possible Action
It was moved by Ebbinghausen, seconded by Walden-Qualls and unanimously carried to approve
Resolution No. 2017-02 to establish a Capital Reserves Account.

C. Charles Roll — Discussion and Possible Action
Board of Directors assured Mr. Roll that the reporting for the water rights is being completed
annually as required by the state.

D. Hire District Board Clerk — Discussion and Possible Action
It was moved by Gardner, seconded by Ebbinghausen and unanimously carried to approve the
hiring of a Board Clerk at a rate to be no more than $300 per meeting.

E. Bylaws and Administrative Policies — Discussion and Possible Action
Director Walden-Qualls distributed to the Board Members edited Bylaws for their input and review.
The public was assured that before final acceptance of the new Bylaws, copies would be available
for their review and input as well.

F. Resolution 2017-03 — Resolution of Consolidation and Request of Consolidation with the

November 7, 2017 Election — Discussion and Possible Action
It was moved by Gardner, seconded by Ebbinghausen and unanimously carried to approve
Resolution 2017-03.

Page 2 of 3



12. BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS:

A. Capital Improvements and general repairs necessary at the District. Continued Item.
None now

13. COMMITTEE COMMENTS/REPORTS: None.
14. FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS:
15. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m.

Respectively submitted,
Candi Bingham, Acting Board Clerk

Page 3 of 3



River Pines Public Utility District

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
July 2016 through June 2017

AGENDA ITEM 7

Depreciation Expense

Jul *16 - Jun 17 Jul "15 - Jun 16 $ Change
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Amador County Auditor's Warrant
HO & Timber Tax 49.65 106.52 -56.87
Homeowners Exemption 115.16 57.25 57.91
Secured Appointment 6,341.00 6,069.14 271.86
Secured Direct Charges 194.11 0.00 194.11
Secured Taxes 6,376.07 6,033.71 342.36
Unitary Tax 489.47 473.16 16.31
Unsecured Appointment 200.97 252.05 -51.08
Total Amador County Auditor's Warrant 13,766.43 12,891.83 774.60
Base Fee Income
Sewer 117,766.79 120,116.37 -2,349.58
Stanby 9,894.86 8,716.71 1,178.15
Voluntary Lock-Off 394.61 2,485.00 -2,090.39
Water 125,521.73 114,808.68 10,713.05
Total Base Fee Income 253,577.99 246,126.76 7,451.23
Equipment Rentals 0.00 90.00 -90.00
Interest Income 28.35 1,409.31 -1,380.96
Repair Labor 0.00 177.50 -177.50
Town Hall Rental 565.00 580.00 -15.00
Variable Income
Broken Locks 75.00 225.00 -150.00
Call-Out 0.00 370.24 -370.24
Customer Reports 0.00 10.00 -10.00
Door Hanger Fee 1,309.00 1,232.50 76.50
Late Fees 2,818.11 10,655.20 -7,837.09
Reconnection Fee 1,080.00 1,380.00 -300.00
Returned Check Fee 203.00 87.00 116.00
Service Connection Fee 394.50 1,051.25 -656.75
Water - Usage 30,048.08 23,854.64 6,193.44
Total Variable Income 35,927.69 38,865.83 -2,938.14
49900 - Uncategorized Income 0.00 15.00 -15.0Q
Total Income 303,865.46 300,256.23 3,609.23
Gross Profit 303,865.46 300,256.23 3,609.23
Expense
Amador Water - Routine/Samples 3,597.55 0.00 3,597.55
Bank Charges
Collection Fees 0.00 96.69 -96.69
Loan Service Charge 180.00 180.00 0.00
Retirement Fee 0.00 869.47 -69.47
Tax Roll Fees 408.73 16.00 392.73
60400 - Bank Service Charges 162.36 10.00 142.36
Total Bank Charges 741.09 372.16 368.93
Board Members
Stipends 4,875.00 4,125.00 750.00
Total Board Members 4,875.00 4,125.00 750.00
Contracted Expenses
Amador Water Agency 0.00 236.95 -236.95
Board Clerk 0.00 875.00 -875.00
CALFIRE - Culverts 0.00 549.75 -549.75
Contracted Project Personal 0.00 5,301.80 -5,301.80
Manager 55,666.71 ] ”:'.50,804.92 o 4,861.79
Total Contracted Expenses 55,666.71 57,768.42 -2,101.71

Page 1



River Pines Public Utility District

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
July 2016 through June 2017

Sewer
Water

Total Depreciation Expense

ECWAG Expenses
Postage/Shipping

Total ECWAG Expenses

Employees

Amador Water - Weekend Coverage
Amador Water -Vacation Coverag
District Sub-Contractor

Medical Insurance
Field

Total Medical Insurance

Payroll Expense
Field Payroll

Payroll Taxes - Employer's

Total Payroll Expense

Reimbursements
Phone

Total Reimbursements

Retirement - Field
Uniform

Total Employees

Sewer Expenses
Alarm Monitoring

Amador Water - Routine Service
Amador Water Agency - Repairs

Certification
Chemicals

Consulting - Engineer

Electricity - Sewer
Excavating
Inspections
Jetting
Permit/Fees

Repairs/Maintenance
Sewage - Pump Service
Sewer - Parts/Supplies

Sm. Tools

Storm Damage/Repair

Storm Work - 2017

Telephone - Sewer

Testing - Sewer

Total Sewer Expenses

Town Hall Expenses
Janitorial

Repairs/Maintenance

Supplies

Total Town Hall Expenses

Void

Void - Misprint

Water Expenses
Alarm Monitoring

Amador Water Agency - Repairs

Jul 16 - Jun 17 Jul "5 - Jun 16 $ Change
0.00 14,472.00 -14,472.00
0.00 22,636.00 -22,636.00
0.00 37,108.00 -37,108.00
0.00 ) 1.90 -1.80
0.00 1.90 -1.90
5,405.83 3,564.00 1,841.83
13,606.57 1,677.76 11,927.81
431.48 0.00 431.48
9,625.86 9,527.58 98.28
9,625.86 9,527.58 98.28
44,094.86 73,536.35 -29,441.49
4,547.41 4,496.94 50.47
48,642.27 78,033.29 -29,391.02
43200 1,024.00 -592.00
432.00 1,024.00 -592.00
2,880.29 2,748.49 131.80
0.00 223.45 -223.45
81,023.30 96,798.57 -156,775.27
7,321.50 3,377.50 3,944.00
2,458.98 0.00 2,458.98
2,620.23 819.30 1,800.93
0.00 170.00 -170.00
494.94 0.00 494 .94
3,832.50 0.00 3,832.50
20,278.30 13,266.30 7,012.00
237.50 0.00 237.50
0.00 4,600.00 -4,600.00
880.00 0.00 §80.00
80.60 0.00 80.60
5,784.05 3,029.27 2,754.78
490.00 2,120.00 -1,630.00
581.68 1,211.37 -629.69
274.22 417.00 -142.78
4,007.89 0.00 4,007.89
4,360.02 0.00 4,360.02
933.52 699.53 233.99
2,236.00 180.00 2,056.00
56,871.93 29,890.27 26,981.66
3,120.00 2,940.00 180.00
240.63 202.80 37.83
1456.79 262.82 -117.03
3,606.42 3,405.62 100.80
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
2,803.50 1,447.50 1,356.00
5,497.22 2,698.21 2,799.01

Page 2



River Pines Public Utility District

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
July 2016 through June 2017

Amador Water Agency - Training

Certification Fees
Chlorine

Consulting - Engineer

Electricty - Water
Excavating

ICE - Sample Delivery

Permit Fees
Repair/Maintenance
Sm. Tools

Supplies
Telephone - Water
Water Testing

Total Water Expenses

60200 - Automobile Expense
District Vehicle - GPS

Gasoline

Insurance

John Deere - Tractor
Repairs/Maintenance

Total 60200 - Automobile Expense

63300 - Insurance Expense
Insurance - Property/Liability
Workers' Compensation

Total 63300 - Insurance Expense

64900 - Office Expenses
Admin Cost - Tax Roll

Equipment
Filing Fees

License/Certifications
Maintenace/lmprovements

Membership Dues
Postage/Shipping
Printing

Software
Supplies

Website Service

61700 - Computer and Internet Expenses
Total 64900 - Office Expenses

66000 - Payroll Expenses
66700 - Professional Fees
CDBG Planning Grant - Engineer

Legal Fees
Payroll - Intuit
Property Surveying

Security Service/Maintenance

Yearly Audit

Total 66700 - Professional Fees

68600 - Utilities

Disposal
Electricity - Office

Electricity - Town Hall
Electricty - Street Lights

Internet

68100 - Telephone - Office
Total 68600 - Utilities

Jul "16 - Jun 17 Jul 15 - Jun 16 $ Change
0.00 404.45 -404.45
66.65 0.00 66.65
1,448.23 2,253.57 -805.34
0.00 910.00 -910.00
15,609.86 15,238.02 371.84
237.50 0.00 237.50
30.59 0.00 30.59
6,410.14 6,277.65 132.49
1,379.87 624.75 755.12
984.72 530.80 453.92
1,760.31 3,886.99 -2,126.68
944.08 862.97 81.11
7,078.00 12,686.00 -5,608.00
44,250.67 47,820.91 -3,570.24
276.00 69.00 207.00
1,208.90 2,211.06 -1,002.16
800.00 0.00 800.00
0.00 1,316.05 -1,316.05
1,235.93 5,298.05 -4,062.12
3,520.83 8,894.16 -5,373.33
4,559.00 5,117.99 -558.99
269.27 8,498.73 -8,229.46
4,828.27 13,616.72 -8,788.45
0.00 808.80 -808.80
0.00 503.29 -503.29
0.00 145.66 -145.66
250.00 412.60 -162.60
62.50 0.00 62.50
1,243.12 1,637.19 -394.07
2,082.32 2,247.35 -165.03
715.95 309.67 406.28
324.80 993.35 -668.55
1,931.36 1,982.12 -50.76
600.00 500.00 100.00
150.00 0.00 150.00
7,360.05 9,540.03 -2,179.98
0.00 3,646.00 -3,646.00
0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00
3,273.80 2,922.60 351.20
0.00 6.00 -6.00
2,470.00 0.00 2,470.00
4,411.50 1,960.00 2,451.50
3,700.00 3,650.00 50.00
13,856.30 13,538.60 316.70
965.22 996.79 -31.57
338.26 411.00 -72.74
287.44 197.62 89.82
2,024.22 1,973.81 50.41
2,040.00 1,700.00 340.00
719.47 715.18 4.29
6,374.61 5,994 .40 380.21

Page 3



River Pines Public Utility District

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
July 2016 through June 2017

Jul "16 - Jun 17 Jul "5 - Jun 16 $ Change
69800 - Uncategorized Expenses 0.00 94.40 -94.40
Total Expense 286,471.73 332,615. 1§ -46, 143.431
Net Ordinary Income 17,393.73 -32,358.93 49,752.66
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
CDBG Grant Income 0.00 94,952.90 -94,952.90
CDBG Planning Grant - Engineer 0.00 -94,952.90 94,952.90
Donations - Town Hall 0.00 100.00 -100.00
Grant - SRAFPF(CAL FIRE) 103,864.57 0.00 103,864.57
Grant Income - DWSRF 165,749.00 0.00 165,749.00
Grant Income - ECWAG 0.00 25,800.00 -25,800.00
Other Income 12,367.62 5,000.00 7,367.62
Wireless Site Lease 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00
Total Other Income 284,981.19 30,900.00 254,081.19
Other Expense
Curb Side Chipping (CalFire) 30,226.79 0.00 30,226.79
DWSRF - Environmental Study 6,152.50 0.00 6,152.50
DWSRF Grant - Surveying 159,595.78 0.00 159,595.78
Forester - Erik Jensen(CalFire) 14,479.43 0.00 14,479.43
Mastication Project(CalFire) 59,163.24 0.00 59,163.24
Write-Off Accounts , 6,462.37 0.00 6,462.37
Total Other Expense 276,080.11 0.00 276,080.11
Net Other Income 8,901.08 ) 30,900.00 -21,998.92

Net Income 26,294.81 -1,458.93 27,753.74

Page 4



River Pines Public Utility District
Profit & Loss by Class

July 2017
Sewer 7 Water TOTAL
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Amador County Auditor's Warrant
Secured Taxes 76.§3 76.64 163.27
Total Amador County Auditor's Warrant 76.63 76.64 153.27
Base Fee Income
Sewer 10,774.92 0.00 10,774.92
Stanby 355.00 355.00 710.00
Voluntary Lock-Off 140.00 140.00 280.00
Water 7 0.00 10,776.90 10,776.90
Total Base Fee Income 11,269.92 11,271.90 22,541.82
Interest Income 0.73 0.62 1.35
Town Hall Rental 20.00 20.00 40.00
Variable Income
Door Hanger Fee 0.00 136.00 136.00
Late Fees 182.81 182.81 365.62
Water - Usage - 0.00 5,646.44 5,646.44
Total Variable Income 182.81 5,965.25 6,148.06
Total Income 11,550.09 17,334.41 28,884.50
Gross Profit 11,550.09 17,334.41 28,884.50
Expense
Board Members
Stipends 37.50 37.50 - 75.00
Total Board Members 37.50 37.50 75.00
Contracted Expenses
Manager 2,416.66 2,416.68 4,833.34
State Reporting 111.50 111.51 223.01
Total Contracted Expenses 2,528.16 2,528.19 5,056.35
Employees
Amador Water - Weekend Coverage 456.00 456.00 912.00
Medical Insurance
Field ] 463.89 463.89 9_27.78
Total Medical Insurance 463.89 463.89 927.78
Total Employees 919.89 919.89 1,839.78

Sewer Expenses
Alarm Monitoring 700.00 0.00 700.00

Amador Water - Routine Service 2.640.02 0.00 2,640.02
Amador Water Agency - Repairs 3,898.93 0.00 3,898.93
Consulting - Engineer 3,982.50 0.00 3,982.50
Electricity - Sewer 1,317.20 0.00 1,317.20
Sewer - Parts/Supplies 8,023.33 0.00 8,023.33
Telephone - Sewer 164.98 0.00 164.98
Testing - Sewer 130.00 0.00 130.00
Total Sewer Expenses 20,856.96 0.00 20,856.96
Town Hall Expenses
Janitorial 120.00 120.00 240.00
Total Town Hall Expenses 120.00 120.00 240.00
Void - Misprint 0.00 0.00 0.00
Water Expenses
Alarm Monitoring 0.00 300.00 300.00
Amador Water Agency-Electrical 0.00 3,740.86 3,740.86
Amador Water Agency-Meter Read 0.00 299.19 299.19

Page 1



River Pines Public Utility District
Profit & Loss by Class

July 2017
Sewer Water TOTAL
Amador Water Agency-Routine 0.00 5,375.78 5,375.78
Amador Water Agency - Repairs 0.00 1,135.00 1,135.00
Electricty - Water 0.00 1,436.60 1,436.60
Supplies 0.00 593.08 593.08
Telephone - Water 0.00 169.79 169.79
Water Testing 0.00 1,486.00 1,486.00
Total Water Expenses 0.00 14,536.30 14,536.30
60200 - Automobile Expense
Insurance ~ 409.50 ~ 409.50 819.00
Total 60200 - Automobile Expense 409.50 409.50 819.00
63300 - Insurance Expense
Insurance - Property/Liability 2,367.00 2,367.00 4,734.00
Workers' Compensation 1,856.92 1,856.92 3,713.84
Total 63300 - Insurance Expense 4,223.92 4,223.92 8,447.84
64900 - Office Expenses
Membership Dues 0.00 155.60 155.60
Postage/Shipping 73.50 73.50 147.00
Printing 0.00 75.92 75.92
Software 7.49 7.50 14.99
Supplies 11.56 11.56 23.12
Website Service 25.00 25.00 50.00
Total 64900 - Office Expenses 117.55 349.08 466.63
66700 - Professional Fees
Legal Fees 99.50 99.50 199.00
Security Service/Maintenance 140.00 140.00 - 280.00
Total 66700 - Professional Fees 239.50 239.50 479.00
68600 - Utilities
Disposal 40.06 40.06 80.12
Electricity - Office 0.00 23.76 23.76
Electricity - Town Hall 23.76 0.00 23.76
Electricty - Street Lights 84.65 84.65 168.30
Internet 85.00 85.00 170.00
68100 - Telephone - Office 30.18 30.19 - 6037
Total 68600 - Utilities 263.65 263.66 527.31
Total Expense 29,716.63 23,627.54 53,344.17
Net Ordinary Income -18,166.54 -6,293.13 -24,459.67
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Grant Income - DWSRF 0.00 25,333.00 25,333.00
Wireless Site Lease 250.00 250.00 500.00
Total Other Income 250.00 25,583.00 25,833.00
Other Expense
DWSREF - Environmental Study 0.00 3,348.50 3,348.50
DWSRF Grant - Surveying 0.00 21,983.55 21,983.55
Total Other Expense 0.00 25,332.05 25,332.05
Net Other Income 250.00 250.Qj 500.95
Net Income -17,916.54 -6,042.18 -23,958.72

Page 2



| abed

16°2€L°02 ocBlY JsodeQ
gscLe'oz 8¢ L6V usodag
1291861 L8'GP6'CL usodaq
9¥'0./8's 00°6L8- 810Z/.10¢ 22uBInsu] S[0143A
9v'689'0 [AWA o 2-2£02568689
86'9€.'9 ¥9'S¥6- Z2-LE1¥BG8SYe
29'289'L 96°067- y-6YSPez.LeeS
8s'cLL'g £2'€20'8- sdwing puod Jemes z
L6'96L 9} 0T LLE L §-20090812.8
LLPLG' AL 00VELY 8102/L10Z - @duemnsu] Ajjiger
LLgreee 00'919°L- Buiise | Jamag/IslBA
L1 #98°'cT 15'8vZ'8- 2100¢
8921128 clLog- GLLL
08'Z6l'ce 96°/.5¢ ysodaqg
¥2'GE6'LE 000l JsodaQ
¥Z2'508°LE 8.'e0¢ usodaq
or'209°LE 00°0G- a)IsgapA 1ousIg
o¥'259'LE L99Lv'e 210z Ainpe
£1'690'%¢ gl'6cL ysodeq
8C'BEB'EE 00041
8C'680}'¥E 66'FL-
LEVZLPE PE'2Z6 usodag
£0202'EE  £5'9El yusodag
05°€90°€E leecl usodaqg
6lL0¥6'CE 92's61-
Sp'geL'ee L8'€86-
9Z'6L1'¥E #5980V
08'602'8¢ 18¢LL usodaq
£6'2£0'8¢ 0.018'S usoda(
€geee'ee 06'L8- 6 L0. ¥86£-G¥C 60¢C
gl'voe'ee veeLL'e- 81.02/.102 - @2ueinsu| dwog SJIoM
16'210'9¢ 00082 seoIneg Anoaes
16'162°9¢€ ce¥e- 022. L1L0¥-GFE 602
61'28€'9E 00'CL6- 8100¢
BLV6ZLE  9L9C-
Geoze'Le [ SWANA
GZ'855°'.LE #0'918-
6Zv.E'8E 00'GZ- 210z finr - puadns
626778 00°GL 110z AInf - pusdiig
62'v25'88  00°G/- 210z Ainp - pusdns
62'665'8¢ 00°6Z- 210z Ainp - puedig
62'¥.9'8E 00°G.- 210z Anp - puadis
62'6¥.'8S L9°9L¥'e- 210z Aine
96'G9l'L¥ ¥8°0 1s918)U]
ZL'G9L'Ly 00052 jisodeg
ZL'Gi6'0v 00°000°Z}- Jajsuel] spun
ZLS18'2 el ysodag
86'28'¢S
86'28'eS

asuejeg Junowy owap

2102/121L0 ysadeq
£102/02/L0 ysodeq
L10Z/02/20 ysodaq
payun WAeaT 05421 LLOZ/0Z/L0 3o8uD- jwd g
1leH umo /800 - 399d 6¥.2L LL0Z/0Z/L0 3oayo- jwd g
Z 191ep\ - 399d XA £102/02/L0 ¥oayo- wud g
1918/ - 3%9d JRxA) 210202120 yoayo- jud g
slayjoig Aexe|s ST XA L10Z/02/.0 ¥oayo- ud g
1ameg - I99d SviZl) 2102/02/20 ¥2ayD- juid ligd
pajun piAes vriZL 210Z/0ZILO ¥o8yD- Juid g
soineg Alojeiogen ejuloje e¥LZL 2102/02/L0 ¥oeyg- wwd g
Kousby Jajep\ JopEWY Zrizl 2102/02/L0 MoauD- juid |I'g
'0U| ‘SB0INBS BISBAN SOV R x4 £102/02/.0 oayD- jud g
LLOZ/6L1L0 ysodag
L10Z/6LIL0 usodeq
L10Z/611L0 usodeq
swikoidaq [enbiq ygep £102/61/L0 pelig}
weybulg ipued GeiZ) 210271120 ¥29YQ- Jud iiig
LLOZIZLIL0 usodeq
ssajaiip 8Bpry Axyooy LLOT/ILVIL0 peEllie}
4ad 2qopy Yo L10Z/L0iL0 plk:lie)
2102720120 ysodeq
£L102/20/L0 ysodag
210Z/90/20 ysodeq
9le1s - punodud] Xe| ye LL0Z/S0/L0 o3y
|esgpe - puncdul| Xe| Yo L10Z/G0/L0 %8y
[esopad - punodui| Xe | ye £102/50/20 ¥28YD
£102/60/L0 ysodeq
£102/G0/L0 ysodeq
lemes - 181V vzl 210Z/S0/L0 %o8yg- Jud g
YINYAS 6ELZ 1102/S0/.0 3osyD- ud liig
suonn|og L| UoIssIy 8€.21 2102/60/L0 ¥oayD- 1ud lid
isepn - 181V 18121 £102/50/L0 yoayD- jwd |1g
fousby Jsjepp Jopewy 9¢.2l £102/50/L0 yoayD- Jud |I'g
8je}g - punodwi xe | Yo LLOZ/E0IL0 pleleltlg)
9}E}S - punoduw xe L ye LLOZ/E0/L0 PieCiTg)
9)e)s - punodu| xe| ye LL0Z/E0/L0 ¥o8yD
2N preyary £elgl L102/10/20 3oayo- uid g
s|lenp-uspiepn suey zZelzl £102/10/20 ¥o8Yyo- 1ud iiig
laupies) |8eyYIN 0gLZl £102/10/20 3oy~ Jd Iiig
jeibpue Ayyed 62.L2) 210Z/L0/L0 ¥o8yo- Jud g
uesneybuiqq3 enuy 8z.21 210Z/L0/20 ¥osyo- jud g
weybuig 1pued veizl 2102/10/L0 ¥oayo- jud g
£10Z/0€/90 ysodeq
2102/62/90 ysodag
£102/62/90 Jajsuel}
£102/82/90 psodag
Bupjoayn opeloq |3

SIUNOCIIY yueg

awenN wnn a)eq adA)

8 W31l YAN3IDV

210Z ‘L€ Ainr Jo sy
sBunes|y pieog-HodayoIind JUNoIdy

jousia AN 21gnd sauld JoAry



z aebegd

¥6°'v99°92 ¥0°'8.L1'92Z-

¥6¥#99'9¢ 0'8.1'92-

¥6'%99'92 $0°'8L1'92-

¥6'799'02 290 1s818U|

Z€'¥99'92 8.L'.26- “eInsU| YyesH JojesedQ Jueld - L2802 $S0JD enjg Wayjuy
01'265'L2 19768 0 2Z. L10¥-5¥C 60C 181epn - 1R 1LY
1911942 09°951- BigLie 118 ULON ¥SN
1z2€e8'/2 #0°66-  uodey 8ouspluod JawNsuoD - julld sa|deg
lg'ze6'le 00°0ve- $90IAISS ||lBH Umol - Ainp [euoyuer ddopy 66ey
Le'eLl'8Z 0€'691- £-290¥9089¢L sybi7 j198s - 389d
Lo Ive'ee 00'66L- [eba - aunp  “xnajwser ebnipely zaleAIO
L9 0¥5'82 00'068- 6¥.$920€01 1sni| 9 uegq elulojied
190’62 00°000°}- BuLo)UO LWiely ‘I'd "UEMBIS jualg
L9°0Er'0E 80°¢€8- 6 0L ¥86¢€-G¥C 602 jameg - 181V
89'€LS0E 69°LLL usodaq

00'96£'0E  ¥P'90E'6 ysodag

95'680'1L¢ €6'vE usodag

£9'¥50'L2 $2'9G1L ysodeqQ

6£'868'02 2£°09- auoyds|a] 22O |edjuenbury
9.'856'02 00°L¥L- abejsod sdsn
9/'60L'1g g8'cLE ysodag

asuejeq junowy oW aweN

aviol

SJUNO20Y Yueq [ejo

Bupjoayn opeloq |3 |BI0L

LL0Z/LE/L0 ysodaqg
¥aep LV0Z/LEILO %28y
19721 LLOZ/LEILO ¥oeyg- Jud g
§9.2Z) L102/1LE/20 ¥o8yg- Jud g
¥9221 2102/1E/L0 %08YQ- Juid g
19221 LLOZ/LE/L0 3oeyo- juid g
09221 2102/1E1L0 3o8yo- 1ud lig
65421 L10Z/1LE/L0 ¥oayD- ud liig
§G/Z1 L10Z/LE/L0 yoayD- jud g
¥6./Z1 LLOZ/VEILO ¥oayD- 1wd g
€5/ LLOZ/LEILO }oayQ- ud |Iig
2102/82/40 ysodaq
2102/22/20 ysodaq
£10Z/92/L0 ysodaq
£102/92/L0 ysodaQ
ye £102/92/.0 ¥o8yd
naep 2102/52/20 A8y
LLOTIPEIL0 ysodeQ

wnp ajeq adA]

2102 ‘1€ Ainr jo sy
sbunas|y pieog-}odayoInd Junooddy

jousIa K1nn 9Ngnd seuld JoAlY



AGENDA ITEM 9A

River Pines Dept Report

July Water Production/Sold

Well 2- 722,000 gallons Total Produced — 1,490,266 gallons
Well 3R- 737,800 gallons Total Sold —= 1,060,011 gallons
Well 6R — 30,466 gallons Total Lost -28.9%

Damon-

e Continued to work with General Manager, Candi and AWA Electrical Supervisor, Pat on
developing AWA SCADA access to facilities.

e Worked with RPPUD Engineering consultant on water balance for the wastewater treatment
facility.

Andrea-

e Completed 2™ quarter and June monthly reporting for water and wastewater.
e On-going work with regulator, Dave Remick on scheduling his final inspection
e Citation response for failed backflow testing

Construction-

e 7/5/17 finished tractor clearing and ditching in WW sprayfield and around ponds
e 7/27/17 Service line leak repair

Wastewater-

o Continued to keep sprayfields running

e Installed new irrigation pump

e Clearing sprayfields to gain access to solenoid valves

o Monitoring all liftstations

e Replaced O-rings at irrigation meter

e Cleaning around plant area.

e Influent flow: 684,500 gallons Effluent Discharged: 630,000 gallons

e Provided system coverage and coordinated with fire personnel during the Mt Aukum fire on
7/26. Investigated a leak at this time and operated Well 6R in emergency situation to provide
additional water to replenish tanks.

e Investigated leak on Emigrant Trail and met with customer.

e Provided customer service contact on taste and odor calls on Pine Ave and Pigeon Trail

e Attended meeting with Kasl Engineering and D&N regarding circle tank replacement and
relocation.

e Completed all routine well and distribution system sampling for July.



Electrical/Instrumentation-

e Wastewater plant:
o Direct cable wires exposed. Repairs made to wires and cable.
o Submersible motor installed
o Sprayfield flow meter failed. Realigned meter head on top of gear assembly. Tested. All

good.
e Wide Area Network (WAN) security issues- Currently in progress. Preliminary redesigh and
installation of new WAN with system connectivity to AWA systems behind SonicWALL firewall.



“§F RIVER PINES PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

22900 Canyon Ave., PO BOX 70, River Pines, CA 95675
Phone: (209) 245-6723 Fax: (209) 245-5710 Email: RPPUD@RPPUD.org

AGENDA ITEM 9B

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

For the Month of: July 2017

[u—

Lh

7.

8.

g.

. Submitted monthly payment request for DWSRF Grant
. Income Survey Update — Conference Call (July 25) with: Dave Remick,

Bhupinder, Pete Stamos (State Water Resource Board), Kim Strong,
Diana Conkle (RCAC) - Pete Stamos urged Kim to submit income
survey request as “high priority.” Hoping for a response from RCAC
within three weeks.

. Submitted a request for an extension on DWSRF Grant — Pete Stamos

submitted request and asked for a 6-month extension.

Meeting with Patrick and Damon from AWA — discussed future SCADA
options and ongoing concerns with operations. Current SCADA situation
is not conducive to the needs of the District or AWA. (Agenda Item)
Received $13,672.75 from Tax Roll

Sprinklers in the waste plant spray fields all need to be replaced. They
are plugged (beyond unplugging, broken, leaking etc.) There are approx.
100. AWA is replacing in approx. 50 increments — approximate cost for
all $1,600.

Central Valley Water Board is requiring the District to install Monitoring
Wells in the spray fields

Weekly Bank Deposits

Monthly Service Billing

10.Monthly Late Notices
11.Monthly 48 Hour Notices
12.Minutes

13.Agenda & Packets



MEETING DATE:  August9, 2017 AGENDA ITEM 10B

FROM: Candi Bingham, General Manager
SUBJECT: River Pines Lighting

AGENDA TYPE: Regular Meeting
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

RECOMMENDATION: Looking for resident’s recommendations

BACKGROUND: PG&E owns and maintains the lighting in River Pines. River Pines Public Utility
District pays the cost of the electricity for the lighting.

DISCUSSION: PG&E has contacted me to upgrade the lights from cobra-head high pressure
sodium vapor streetlights to more efficient LED fixtures. They are asking:

1. Do we wish to take advantage of the “no cost” upgrade?
2. If so, would we like to upgrade all locations or just specific locations?

BUDGET IMPACT: $0 — could possibly reduce electricity cost to the District.



: o
‘ ; M : | g River Pines PUD <rppud@rppud.org>
bl M w.:_l-..‘

Streetlight Upgrades in River Pines PUD

1 message

Silva, Kristen <K1Cp@pge.com> Mon, Jul 24, 2017 at 2:47 PM

To: "rppud@rppud.org” <rppud@rppud.org>
Cc: "Silva, Kristen" <K1Cp@pge.com>

Hi Candi,
Thank you for taking the time to speak with me today.
As per our conversation, PG&E would like to bring new energy efficient LED streetlights to your
community. Under this program, PG&E will replace company-owned (LS1) cobra-head high pressure
sodium vapor (HPSV) streetlights with more efficient LED fixtures. Further details are available at
www.PGE com/streetlightupgrade and the attached flyer. This is an opt in/opt out program, in which you
have to option to keep the wattage at a similar LED equivalent, or change the wattage.
Prior to rolling this program out, we completed an inventory of all streetlights in the service territory. Within
the next couple of weeks | anticipate having a fresh inventory list & map to all your lights ready for you to
review. As soon as | have it ready, | will be in contact to schedule a meeting to discuss the program and
the opt in process in further detail. In the mean time, if you would like to get a head start, you can start
thinking about area which have existing LS1 cobra head fixtures, in which you would like to see the
wattage increased or decreased.
Some highlights from this program are:

e No cost to upgrade

e Less than 10 minutes to upgrade each fixture

e Reduced streetlight energy bill

e Reduced greenhouse gas emissions

e  Clear bright white light, with better visibility

¢ Directional lighting and no up light or glare

If you have any questions please let me know, my contact information is listed below.

Kristen Silva

LCE Electric Outreach | Service Solutions Specialist
® (925)459-6143 ® (925)586-4417 | ®k1cp@pge.com

Learn more about the LED Streetlight Program at www.PGE.com/streetlightupgrade



Questions? Email streetlightupgrade@pge.com

We respect your privacy. Please review our privacy policy for more information.
http:/mww.pge.com/enfabout/company/privacy/customer/index.page



EMERGENCIES Q

¥

BUSINESS SOLUTIONS & REBATES LED STREET LIGHT LIGHTING LED STREETLIGHT
REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

MENU

Saving energy and reducing costs with
LED streetlights

PG&E is committed to providing you with safe, reliable, affordable service.
That's why we're replacing 160,000 high-pressure-sodium-vapor (HPSV] bulbs
with efficient, long-lasting light-emitting diode (LED)] fixtures over the next
three years, in collaboration with cities and counties across our service

territory.

Reducing our carbon footprint and improving cost-efficiency

LED fixtures use less energy than HPSV bulbs. Together, we plan to save more

than 50 million kWh per year with the LED Streetlight Replacement Program.



Replacing HPSV bulbs with LED fixtures of the same wattage can help reduce
monthly energy costs significantly. Also, using less energy per light reduces
greenhouse gas emissions and helps cities reach their long-term energy

goals.

Gaining reliability and reducing maintenance

LED technology maintains most of its light output up to four times longer than
HPSV bulbs. Because we're replacing all PG&E owned city streetlights at the

same time, the new LED lights should last up to 20 years without replacement.

Improving safety

LEDs provide more natural-looking, evenly distributed light. This improved

lighting can help both drivers and pedestrians.

Understand that the LED streetlight upgrade won’t disrupt your life

Installing the new LED streetlights takes about 10 minutes per fixture. There

will be no disruption to electric service in your neighborhood.



Learn how LED streetlights help make your community’s future
brighter

Play the following video for information about the benefits of LED streetlights.

Streetlight Replacement Program

Learn about the benefits of LED streetlight upgrades in your

community.

Audio description and transcript also available for this video.

Access an audio descriptive version
Download a transcript (PDF, 21 KB]

PLAY VIDEO



Report a streetlight problem

PG&E owns and maintains more than 33% of the streetlights in our service
area. The rest are owned by cities, counties and other entities. Find out what
to do when you find a streetlight that's burned out or not working right.

Visit Report a Streetlight Outage or Problem.

Business solutions for upgrading customer-owned streetlights

Find out about rebates and more for installing LED fixtures in streetlights that

are not owned or serviced by PG&E.

Visit LED Streetlight Rebates.

If you have questions about the LED streetlight upgrade program, send an

email to streetlightupgradef@dpge.com.

About PG&E

Company Information
Workshops & Events
Sitemap

PG&E Newsroom

For Our Business Partners
Environment

Careers



AGENDA ITEM 10D

RIVER PINES COMMUNITY GARDEN — RULES & RESPONSIBILITIES

An enjoyable gardening experience for everyone is the primary goal of the rules and
responsibilities. Everyone is asked to observe the rules and be a good neighbor. We would like
our garden to be a happy, enjoyable place where participants can garden and socialize
peacefully in a neighborly manner.

The River Pines Public Utility District will assign garden plots. Plots will be assigned only to
residents of River Pines or a youth/civic organization that serves the River Pines community.

Gardeners will meet and select a committee to review and update rules as necessary.

1. Garden committee has the duty of enforcing the rules and making decisions for the
garden.

2. Once assigned a space, cultivate and plant it. Commit to garden year-round — weather
permitting.

3. Each gardener is responsible for conserving water. Unattended/uncontrolled watering
is not allowed. Anyone witnessing unattended/uncontrolled watering is authorized to
turn water off.

4. Irrigation can be by hand or with battery operated timers and drip line, emitters or
sprinklers.

5. Each gardener will teach their children to respect others plots and not to waste water.
Children are not allowed without parents.

6. Friends can come with you but not by themselves. You would be responsible for the
behavior of your guests.

7. If you are unable to take care of your garden because of illness or vacation, ask a fellow
gardener or resident for assistance.

8. Visit your garden weekly or more often if needed to maintain you garden. Weeds need
to be removed.

9. Please do not plant anything that could be considered invasive or illegal.

10. Do not pick from your neighbor’s garden even if you think they have neglected their
plot.

11. Gardens are not for commercial use; extra produce can be donated to others.

12. Maintain the area around your garden, keep area trash free, do not put/leave anything
in walkways between gardens. Take trash home to dispose of.

13. Everyone is responsible for their garden tools; bring them and take them home. District
is not responsible for lost tools

14. Herbicides (week killers) and pesticides are discouraged.

15. No pets in the garden.

16. No smoking, alcoholic beverages or illegal drugs in the gardens.

17. If you decide to give up your garden spot, please notify the River Pines Public Utility
District or Committee member so that it can be re-assigned to someone else.



RIVER PINES COMMUNITY GARDEN

LOCATION:  Near the children’s park behind the River Pines Town Hall

MISSION: The River Pines Community Garden has several purposes. It will provide a space
for River Pines residents to grow a portion of their own healthy food and introduce/educate
River Pines residents to gardening. It is intended to provide a source of fresh vegetables for the
gardeners/plot holders, their families and friends.

ADMINISTRATION:  The plots will be assigned on a first come, first serve basis. Only one plot
per household. The plots will be issued by the Garden Committee and River Pines Public Utility
District. Plots are assigned on a year-to-year basis. If there are no vacant garden plots,
prospective gardeners may add their names to the community garden waiting list.

PARTICIPANTS: Gardeners/plot holders are limited to residents who live within the River
Pines city limits or youth/civic organizations that serve the River Pines community.

The River Pines Public Utility District is provided this garden space as a courtesy to the
public and all gardeners use this space at their own risk. The River Pines Public Utility District
assumes no responsibility or liability for use of this space and is not responsible for vandalism
or theft.

The set of rules and regulations have been designed for the following reasons:

e To ensure that community garden is safe

e To ensure that community gardens are pleasant places to be and to look at for:
gardeners, neighbors and the public

e To establish fairness and equity among community gardeners

e To prevent damage to the land and groundwater

e To protect the future of community gardens in River Pines



HEALTH AND SAFETY IN THE COMMUNITY GARDEN

As you head to your community garden plot, take the following personal health and
safety considerations into account:

Avoid Isolation. Share information with other gardeners. Know who has chronic
medical conditions, who is allergic to insect stings, which elders might need shelter from

extreme heat or cold, etc.

Be sure to bring adequate amounts of drinking water. It is important to keep hydrated
especially for youth and elders.

Avoid gardening during the heat of the day, generally between 2 p.m. and 6 p.m.

Use sunscreen and gardening hats to protect skin from harmful rays.

Use insect repellent as need warrants. To prevent mosquito populations from
developing rid of any standing water that is in or near the gardening area. Check for
ticks on your clothing and person during and after gardening.

Avoid unnecessary blisters and scrapes by wearing proper gardening gloves and
footwear while doing heavy work in the garden.

Treat scrapes and skin abrasions. Keep the bacteria and contaminants out of your body;
wash abrasions thoroughly with soap and water.

Avoid injury by using the proper gardening tools. Avoid weak or damaged tools. To
avoid unnecessary stress or injury, use proper body mechanics when lifting, shoveling
and doing other heavy physical labor.

Have Fun!



TEN BASIC GARDEN RULES

1. Participate in spring and fall cleanups

2. Plant your plot by June 1, or lose it.

3. Keep your plot clean and help maintain common areas, paths and fence
lines

4. Conserve water. Don’t waste.

5. Avoid chemical pesticides.

6. No herbicides

7. Prepare your plot for winter by November 30t. Clean up. Protect your soil
from erosion.

8. No pets in the garden.

9. Children must be supervised in the garden.

10.Discourage theft — harvest promptly. Do not pick from others plots.



ESSENTIAL COMPONENTS OF A SUCCESSFUL COMMUNITY GARDEN

Active Coordinators

e Spring Sign-Up Meeting

e Fall Wrap-Up Meeting

e Dues

e Written Rules

e List of Gardeners, Addresses, Phone Numbers

e Sign Identifying Garden

e Written Waiting List

e Periodic Cleanups

e Garden Presence/Care Taker Plan

e Task Assignments/Work Requirements

e Coordinator/Rotating Coordinator

e Garden Winterizing Plan

e Written Enforcement Policy

e Planned Social Events (Farmers Market)

e Neighborhood Outreach (Newsletter/Word of Mouth)



-4

4+ Ruver PiNes PusLic Uty DisTRICT 5

;

AGENDA ITEM 10F
MEETING DATE:  August 9, 2017

FROM: Candi Bingham, General Manager
SUBJECT: Waste plant — Water Balance Study
AGENDA TYPE: Regular Meeting
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes

BACKGROUND: RPPUD received a citation following the 2017 winter storms due to excessive
discharge from the sewer ponds. The excessive discharge took place because 1. Sewer ponds were not
lowered to proper levels prior to November 2016 as required by the WDR’s; 2. Rainfall was more than
usual.

Part of the Citation required that RPPUD hire an engineer to conduct a Balance Water Report.

DISCUSSION: Following the submission of the Balance Water Report, Central Valley Regional Water
Quality Control Board is requiring that the District install monitoring wells. They are currently only
requiring a “Written Plan” on how the District is going to go about completing this task.

I spoke with Damon Wyckoff with Amador Water Agency (AWA) and he explained to me that AWA and
Jesse Shaw (the hired Engineer) will be working together to create this plan and submit it to the Central
Valley Regional Water Control Board.

Damon stated that the plan will most likely be written to have once monitoring well installed yearly over
the next five years or so. Damon is thinking that there will need to be approximately 3-4 monitoring wells
installed at a cost of approximately $20,000 per well. An engineer will be needed to conduct a study as to
how many wells and their locations.

BUDGET IMPACT: $60,000 - $90,000 over approximately a five-year period



From: Jesse Shaw [mailto:jbs@jacksonca.net]

Sent: Monday, July 24, 2017 1:55 PM

To: Hold, Howard@Waterboards; Croyle, Kenny@Waterboards
Cc: 'Damon Wyckoff'; 'Gene Mancebo'; 'Mike Israel'

Subject:

~ HiGuys
This email is in response fo your letter dated 7/11 to River Pines regarding the pilot study.

First — the pilot study is a good idea. | am currently working with the AWA and River Pines to set up the
testing and monitoring. | am more than confident that this is the key to the long term success of their
disposal system. Thank you for helping get this initiated.

Second - This letter also included the future requirement of monitoring wells. We understand this normally
is a part of many WDR's, but it seems a bit onerous and unreasonable to require them be installed right
now. Let me explain our thinking:



1) The water balance they will generally be following is irrigation at strictly agronomic
rates from May until October. In other words-nothing to percolation, (no impact to
groundwater during the main irrigation season). Under existing flows and average
rainfall, they would have to irrigate 1 day per month at a rate of .25"/day during the
winter. This amounts to an average of 220 gal/day per acre over the winter in an
average year. This is of negligible impact to underlying water resources.

Under existing flows, during the 100 year event, we are projecting irrigation 5 days a
month for November to April, at a rate of .25” per day on those 5 days, or 1.25" for the
month. This would be an average of about 1100 gpd/acre during the 100 year rainfall
event. Still very lightly loaded hydraulically, but constituent levels may be a bit higher.
It is unlikely significant though, because the monthly rain during the 100 year rain
would be around 8-107, thus diluting constituents like N by a factor of around 8:1 for
anything sprayed in the winter. So for example, if total N came out of their ponds at 10
mg/l, it would enter the groundwater at 1-1.5 mg/l on the average. Again — this would
seem negligible. The dilution factor would actually be even greater when you consider
the sprayfield is 17 acres, but the total River Pines parcel is 38 acres, so the increase
in total N might be even less than 1 mg/l. Likely the same would follow for other
constituents.

2) As can be seen on the attached — the River Pines disposal area is surrounded by
40-70 acre parcels and larger. It appears the nearest well is about 2000 from the
nearest River Pines spray field. | realize your concerns also lie in the overall impact to
local groundwater resources, but impacts to any nearby wells is most likely non-
existent.

3) The existing WDR'’s — either as written or interpreted — do not work on paper, nor
did they work on the ground. River Pines pointed this discrepancy in their water
balance report, and we are attempting to remedy it (with your help), but at the same
time we get hit with the monitoring wells. As outlined in detail in earlier
correspondence — if River Pines had their effluent storage pond (15 AF) full at the end
of April, and had the design flow of 35,000 gpd coming into their WWTP, and they
were limited by the regional board to the existing WDR’s to 35000 gpd disposal — the
system would not work. It never would have if limited by 35000 gpd to disposal. The
pond would only lose volume through evaporation. Clearly this was not the intent of
the original WDRs - there is plenty of sprayfield to make this system work as originally
designed. The point is that we see part of the problem being how the existing WDR's
are written/interpreted, and not really the fault of River Pines or how they were
operating their disposal system.

4) With the improvements recommended in the recent water balance report and the
follow up work plan for improvements to runoff controls, their system will clearly be
operated more efficiently and will be far less likely to be of impact to ground or surface
waters. For example — the storage pond will now routinely be drawn down relatively
quickly, so the pond will be emptied earlier, and stay empty (or emptier) longer. Since
unlined storage ponds like this can be sources of unwanted leaks or percolation, these
possibilities would be minimized and likewise will minimize any potential negative
impacts (showing up in a monitoring well) of their storage pond. It would seem
reasonable to allow the District to operate within the improvements they will be making
for awhile before (if ever) requiring the monitoring wells.

5) We think a reasonable compromise here would be to first allow River Pines to get
through the pilot study and set up what will hopefully be an improved long term
operating curve for their pond and disposal system, and demonstrate to the Regional
Board that the loading rates and impacts will indeed be as outlined above. Which for
by far the majority of the time — and gallonage - there will be absolutely no effluent
even percolating into the groundwater. It is very likely we can demonstrate that in
most years - there will be 0 gallons to percolation. And when there is some effluent to
percolation, it will be very minor, very diluted, and of negligible impact to the
groundwater resources in the area.



So to sum up, we are asking the regional board to hold the monitoring well requirement in abeyance for 2
or 3 years until we can demonstrate what on paper seems to make sense. Which is to prove through our
monitoring efforts that the monitoring wells aren’t really needed. And will be an unnecessary expense fo
install and test and report on.

Respectfully submitted,

Jesse Shaw



From: Croyle, Kenny@Waterboards [mailto:Kenny.Croyle@Waterboards.ca.gov]

Sent: Monday, July 24, 2017 2:36 PM

To: Jesse Shaw <jbs@jacksonca.net>; Hold, Howard @Waterboards <Howard.Hold@waterboards.ca.
gov>

Cc: Damon Wyckoff <dwyckoff@amadorwater.org>; Gene Mancebo <gmancebo@amadorwater.org>;
‘Mike Israel' <misrael@amadorgov.org>

Subject: RE:

Jesse,

Thanks for the response. | appreciate all the detail you put into it. We understand that the increased flows
in the pilot study for this short amount of time are unlikely to cause groundwater impacts. However, the
requirement for the Monitoring Well Installation Plan, while related to the Pilot Study, is more closely tied
to the issues with the current permit. As you said, the permit is no longer effective for this facility. It
needs to be updated to reflect changes in the treatment train and operations. However, it is also
outdated in terms of minimum requirements for permits. We no longer approve any land application
without groundwater monitoring. The reason the workplan was required is that, regardless of the pilot
study, there will need to be wells installed at the facility prior to the new permit being adopted. That
process can be long, but management felt that they needed to get the wheels turning on that so it would
be completed by the time a new permit could be adopted.

I spoke with my senior about your request and he felt that at this point the requirement for the workplan
must stand. However, you may propose your schedule in that workplan to meet whatever date you
choose. When | review that workplan | will speak with our permitting department before we comment on
that schedule and come up with a response.

Please give me a call if you have any questions. Thanks

- 2 i A

Kenny Croyle 2 ~ o Ao ’,'
Water Resources Control Engineer - o e R =
WDRs and Title 27 Compliance and Enforcement Unit - ,
Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ,
11020 Sun Center Drive, Suite 200
Rancho Cordové, CA 95670 { /

7

7 h

1-916-464-4676 (direct) y

Kenny.Croyle@waterboards.ca.gov



Water Balance Report
for
River Pines PUD
Per CVRWQCB Notice of Violation dated 4/13/17
Amador County, CA

June 2017

By: Jesse Shaw, PE
Toma and Associates
Engineering, Surveying and Planning
41 Summit 5t
lackson, CA 95642




River Pines PUD - Water Balance Report

Per CVRWQCB Notice of Violation dated 4/13/17

1. Background: This report and the attached comprises the required response to the CYVRWQCB's
4/13/17 Notice of Violation to the RPPUD (see page 3 item 3).

2. Water Balances: The constructed water balance was run under 4 different scenarics. They were:
Scenario 1 — Existing Flows, 100 year annual rain event, pond start 6AF, 35000 gpd disposal
Scenario 2 — Same as Scenario 1, but with disposal rates increased to actual agronomic rates
Scenario 3 — Same as Scenario 2, but no “rogue” runoff, and start with pond empty
Scenario 4 — Same as 53, but increase ADWF to permit max of 35,000 gpd
Scenario 4A — Same as 54, but increased days irrigate to perc from 5 days to 8 days

Scenario 1 (S1) was used to simulate last year’s heavy rain {(which were coincidentally about a 100 year
event in this area) and calibrate the water balance. As S1 demonstrates, the RP pond did indeed “spill”
under this scenario — even though not actually “spilling”, there was heavy irrigation during the heavy
rains of January 2017. Important points to note under $1, the pond started with +-6AF of effluent, and
there was some “rogue” surface runoff into the treatment ponds. Both were considerable contributing
factors to the problems of January. S1 confirms what actually occurred in January — that without the
irrigation they done during January — freeboard violations and possible spilling could have taken place.
Also to note on S1, 5 days per month of irrigation was done during winter. During 2016-2017, there
were 71 days of rain, or about 10/month on the average. That means no irrigation on those days or 10
follow up days — so 10 days per month potentially available for winter irrigation. Water balance
assumed 5 — except on S4A, which assumed 8. See attached soils information for soils data with respect
tc potential loading rates.

51 also shows that the pond will not empty by 10/1 if limited by a 35,000 gpd disposal rate. This means
irrigation rates must increase this summer to empty their storage pond before the next rainy season.

$2 is the same as S1, except disposal rates are kicked up to what this disposal area can actually take.
Based on ET rates for this area, total ET from May-September would total about 45", Qver 17 acres,
that’s well over 120,000 gpd. Even if they only irrigated 6” per month, [+-92,000 gpd) that’s well under
the estimated agronomic rate, but way above what'’s currently being allowed. So $2 demonstrates that
at very realistic disposal rates, their pond could easily be empty by 10/1. The original designed irrigation
pumps for the River Pines system could pump 150 gpms at 1307, but currently the pump being used can
do only about 72 gpms — way below what is needed to efficiently disperse effluent over the entire
disposal field. Their irrigation pumping rates and pressures would have to improve over what occurs
currently to dispose of effluent properly.

53 is the same as S2, but 2 “improvements” are made. One —all “rogue” runoff is eliminated, and two -
the pond starts empty, instead of 5-6 AF. Rogue runoff appears to be about 4.5 acres of surface runoff
entering the southeasterly treatment pond — which should be diverted around this pond. [t clearly
increases water to the system that shouldn’t be there, and will need to be eliminated. Under this



scenario, the pond will not spill under the 100 year rainfall event. This scenario is important, as it
demonstrates that there is clearly enough disposal capacity in their existing system to handle existing
flows and the 100 year event.

$4 is the same as S3, but with inflow kicked up to the permitted 35,000 gpd. This scenario demonstrates
that the existing River Pines disposal system — using 5 days per manth of winter irrigation — could
actually spill if dry weather flows were 35,000 gpd, (an increase of about 40% over what is happening
today). Clearly, River Pines will have to use some level of winter irrigation to properly store and dispose
of 35,000 gpd. This is significant, as it demonstrates that River Pines must confirm this winter what
winter loading levels are actually possible within the constraints of the WDRs.

SAA assumes 8 days per month of winter irrigation instead of 5 as assumed in $1-54. (Theoretically 10
days are allowed). This was done, because with only 5 days, there was some spilling in 54 at the
permitted ADWF of 35,000 gpd. This scenario is significant, as it demonstrates that 8 days per month of
irrigating (at .25"/day) are necessary to avoid spilling. (Or that more than .25"/day could be applied).

3. Discussion: Clearly — there are issues with the River Pines effluent storage and disposal system which
lead up to the disposal problems they experienced last January and February 2017. The above 4 water
balances document this and demonstrate the changes necessary to bring the system into a fully
compliant operating mode. Part of the issue is with the current operating assumption of no more than
35,000 gpd can go to disposal, and part of the problem is with the River Pines system itself. Both need
to be addressed to allow the system to operate 100% as originally designed.

4. Changes Required to Existing System: Below are the changes required — with brief descriptions — of
what improvements are needed to bring the River Pines disposal system into full compliance.

a) Disposal capacity currently allowed (35,000 gpd) by the WDR’s/Regional Board simply will not
work for this system. This is the single biggest issue, and needs to be changed immediately. The
water balances attached demonstrate this and also demonstrate much higher disposal rates are
justified. If system inflow was actually at 35,000 gpd (which their permit allows) and the
disposal max was 35,000 gpd, how would they empty a 15 AF pond between May and
September? (Besides what is evaporated).

The water balances demonstrate that the River Pines spray field system could actually take over
120,000 gpd. It is suggested that River Pines be aliowed to increase disposal rates this summer
to somewhere in this ballpark, and monitor as necessary to establish the fact that this disposal
rate actually works without creating any nuisance conditions or runoff. This information could
then be used to increase what River Pines is allowed by permit.

It is important to note here that they will not be able to empty their storage pond at rates
currently allowed.

b) It appears that there are +-4.5 acres of surface runoff getting into the east side of their most
southerly treatment pond, (see Figure 1). River Pines needs to look at and improve the ditching
system used to convey surface runoff around this treatment pond. Otherwise, this excess flow
will need to be treated, stored, and disposed of.



¢) River Pines needs to upgrade/replace their existing irrigation pump(s) to one that is capable of
around 150 gpms at 130 ft of head. The existing pump puts out around 70 gpms at a lower
head. This is inadequate to fully dispose of their wastewater to their existing fields. They also
need to confirm that the current suction line inlet level is capable of emptying the pond.

d) The spray fields were inspected on 6/22/17 with AWA personnel. It was clear that treated
effluent wasn’t getting evenly distributed — and the majority of the area didn’t seem to be
getting any effluent. At leasttwo things need to be done immediately to improve this situation.
One is to check all the spray field control valves to make sure they are opening and shutting fully
as directed by the system controller-which did not appear to be the case. If a control valve will
not open — the problem is obvious. If a control valve will not shut — as appears to be the case
with field 4 — it may actually take a lot more effluent than it is designed for, especially if it is one
of the lower fields. If a control valve is not working - it needs to be repaired ar replaced.

Second — once the control valves are operating properly, all spray heads need to be inspected
and confirmed they aren’t clogged. Several were clogged on the recent inspection.

Finally — it is also recommended to eventually add soil moisture tensiometers to control all 7
irrigation control valves —one sensor for each field/contral valve. Very simple moisture sensors
{Rain Bird makes a cheap one | think) can help both in summer and winter. In summer — it will
help adjust a field to take more or less flow depending on the field's soil mantle ability to take
water. If soil moisture is consistently low in one field-it may be a signal to give that field
proportionally more water. For example — one field may be able to only take 4,000 gpd per
acre, whereas another field might take 8,000 gpd per acre. The sensors will help making the
adjustments necessary to maximize loadings without runoff. Inthe winter — the sensor would
work in reverse. If soil moisture level is above a certain threshold — it would not allow a control
valve to open. This control-in tandem with no watering within 24 hours after rain anyways,
would almost eliminate the possibility of effluent runoff. The moisture levels are adjustable, so
wet/dry threshold levels could be adjusted as required, depending on operator experience and a
certain field’s ability to take water.

5. Conclusions: With the improvements/changes noted in section 4 abave, the River Pines system will
be able to fully handle the currently permitted design inflows to their system under the 100 year annual
rainfall event. ltem 4a needs to happen immediately to insure the storage pond is empty by 10/1.
Likewise — the tensiometers can probably wait a bit if necessary. All of the other recommended items
are very straightforward and should be easily implemented by 10/1 as required by the Regional Board.

In addition to the summer time testing noted in section 4a above, the RPPUD also needs to confirm
allowable winter loading rates also. Meaning that within the constraint of no irrigation 24 hours aftera
rain event, how much can their system dispose of without runoff or creating nuisance conditions, or
violating any portion of their WDR’s. This information would then be used to operate the system most
efficiently in the future and not violate their WDR’s with respect to storage or disposal.



LTOZ Y2l 01 9TOZ 4200120 WOl SMo|) 3ARIBAR = MY

170T Fupads - pTOZ SPI0IAI AR QNddl WO 5MOY = MY

Ha3o

srtanc (aBe103s Yuow snojaaid Jo pus+ aBeiogs o3 3au) Aue =07 103 O

Ul 'S T=XRIL 19T [0 4 $0F Yivow Asid = 5110 T

£1[02-GT [02-ELO2 T |92 281107 BT
0 =T ouauaag ‘(Aep/ g pauinsse) dled o3 du jevaged 4 9T e = L1102 £T
2328)1) PINOZ CW/SARR § -€ WNSSY 'LIUOW/OT=SARD UIRd T2=LT0E/9T0 Buunp fHuasa jenuue seah 0T Bupnp Bl 03 Jigejeak sAED U0 pRsR] 91|02 9T

{1 o}euaas Joj pdd pO0's €40) J2
Z1/didesd-| 3}, 5000 [esadsip=tT |02 “LF URY] S5 U]

/yT103=67 102 6T

1140=9T |63 Uai) 'L ueyy JoeRsl um g = 41193 pT

D95 EY/BY'L/6 (02 = ET 03 €T

DOSER/SE /G193 - TT 103+ § |23+ P |3 +T |03} =TT 0D TT
O 1§ 4 107 , ¥ale = OY BnBoY 1T

wou 3B Bujuaddel Lust 1ng - spuod punolé palIaAP 3q piNoYS 384 Bade Joun) 83Bns awos AJUBLNg 81 Jound andoy, 0T

S LL035ER 4 ERIRARADLZT/R DI =6 10D &

LSEaWeEs §

LJENUBIA 33UBPING Y - 131esAB3SEA |Bd|3IUNIA PRWIZIBY YA UDRRBLU|, WOl oY i 013 =13 £
uo[IE)s DUWET WoJy B1Ep voReadsuzijodeas SIWNI3 = 013 aalaisiay 9
{4332 %0) SPUOA ||2 Punoie du3s T 40y 433es puod [BUC|ppe = Y218) Pund J29ApY] §
{y31e3 %007 Wikl , ease day (s)pucd = Y2183 puod 3334Q ¢
{091z A%(2) uopels Buded umors|pply wel lBpuey €
(AONBUNT) 4AMQY 10 (REN-290) JMAY & TIPI= 2100 T

uuow uj sheqg 1
Uendussag oN

dkinjey
56'ZC 90'6Y 5211 TLE £69'835'T  8'iT 918 038 095 0E6'8T9'y BTV T6E'SIE'S spe3oL
a0 & 6T 00 [ 7€ SEL 3 €T [ 8TC [Tt 0L9 609 609 ooty FEEE) 080 0L6'EVL 0% Taquisydes
oo &' e 00 0 §E SP11 99'T e gEL'E €00 Gop'6ES €06 128 128 985 3543 ET0 £94'89L € 1snény
o0 5% Lz 00 0 €€ &t 8L 0 £55°T T0'0 908'¥ES  6L6 088 68 061 ELS'Y 200 634'89L 143 Ang
00 T £z a0 0 TE 7ot 25T 50 0TV [a %] 00§'vIs 198 8L L 9892 SIS 850 OLE'ERL o€ aung
00 §Er 1 ao 0 £'E 4 L o'z 840’85 80 08'ETy 66’9 7€'9 Eiy 9E8'0L 6I6'0LT  BE'T L96'ETS & Ae
0'0 2 ro- ao 0 TE 000 £5'0 e 9TTOET Lot £09'108  §0'8 EE'R 85'% LOE'YE EI¥'E8E  EES o8 DE [y
53 05T £ 1 s 00 400 190 s PEE'LST e WBELIT  ¥9E 1E€ i3 220'87 885'L5.  E5'0T  196'€1R i€ ey
s'e X4 s'e 1 < c'o oo o £ £86'247 34 §e0'TEL 12T 0z 07 15605 2WLEOR LTIT 9BTSEL 8z Klenigad
50 (344 4] 81 H [0 66’0 T80 65 Ly6'peT we 05701 WL 9’1 %L 15065 vSp'E9E  LOZT L98'EIE 1€ Asenuer
00 1T 9€ 81 g 60 a0 9z'0 s 05¥'BFE o'z 05¥'E8 0wt LTt 44 $95'at 16¢'vEL  TTOT L9G'E18 1€ Jaguimosg
0'0 oL ¥z T g [+ 000 550 A 00%'E31T 0s't ZET'9TL ST 56T 56T SETE zIo'DEE  08' oL6'ERL [H JagquIshaN
00 €5 Lo aa 0 E'E 850 08°0 92 18618 130 LOT'097  9E'F 95'E 96’ 8TT'ST TIZ'ovZ  FEE 692'59L TE Jaqo1aQ
] B {ow/e] {ow/ge] (ow/skep] oWy [Jvjpuewag [ET] avlmap] Teuced)  (sewoul]  iedidend  (W)oeny  {ui] 13 [ofei (e uopes (#a) oren  (sedauj]  [|2)wo)y  SAEQ R
JApds, adeiolg adeiolg uad oy BT B (anioy 81133 deag puog RN oysnBey QY snfoy pucd pueg ealy  ©3uagRy ujey ujey  jjesujey uolu dny
wo3 o133 uopedus)  o33jgeiese |esodsig Jipujpued  JIg puod
levoippy  sAepajuim 131 T €1 A 11 ot 5 g L 9 H 2 3 4 1
0z 8T g1 Fas a1

0 =04 280 J0) OY %
L4 = BWn|op |nd (s}puod sEIE ' =Dy ndei jo selay
or'T = (azemns pucd) 3y SHIDR 07T = eady deag
(2'7-00T ag uedafuel) 00T = [spue|peost) oy or'o = 1384 O 2383 19941pU
ELE ] =afeioi5 el 58128 790 23] 132.1pY| pucy
Uoseas [jeguial JesA OnT Buunp oul fshep € e uf shep 31y saioe §9'7 =3y 43383 J22410 pUod
S3U0B /T = Base |esodsi (usoya|ppid 18 28k OT)SaYdU 299 = |[ejuiey
Jide-130] shepR|qEIEAE BULNP ABR/SOYSU| SZ'C =2Jad 018144} pod sgz'ez = JAMY
80 = 43 uopediug pod 864'VC =4pav

1suo[dLnssYy

£102/82/9 a1eQ

SBRII0SEY P RO

pepnpu| gy andey ixew [esods|p pd¥ 0pQ'SE LY 9 eI puod jjeuiey 12k gpt ‘emoly FURSIHD - T OpRUAIG
ER L P LR L DTN TTTE AR ]



S1EF1L| PINOD CLI/SARD § -€ BUNSSY "YIUCW /O T=sAEP VIR TL=LT0T/T0T Bupnp

o1
G
8
jEnuByy BIURPIND Y - JaemEIsen| [BdIaUnlA PALIEIRY VORI, WO TY TN L 94 =03 L
2
g
tr
€

LTOT Y2IRIA 03 BT0E JRGOII0 WO SMOJ BT EIANE = JMIAY
£107 FUES - FT07 SpI0IRI NIER GNddY WOL SMC = JMTY 20

g1 4an0 (adelols yjuow snanald jo pua + p8EI0s 0} jeu) Aue =07 |03 0T
S=UIW ‘G T=XEW T (03 + SOT YIUoW neid = 5T |03 BT
LT193-5T |O-ETI02 -T1 |99 =FT 197 81
0=1 oueUadS ‘(ARp/,c 7 pawunsse) 2ied o3 Bl miuejod , 97109 = 21107 LT

fueae [2nUUZ 4294 00T BUUNE 3101 03 Q)AL SARD UO Paseq 9T |03 3T

{1 oieuadg Joy pdd pRO'S € 40) B BU/KT 192 = 51190 81
11/(01aid-13),Fzn (EEodsip=pT |03 ‘L3 UK S83] Uil 0=y |07 URA ‘L3 UBY3 JR1ea.l LRl i = T3 b1

Q9SEY/RY'L/6102 =ET |02 ET

095 EP/BY L/ (6193 - TE199+§ |07+ 10342 |03) 221101 TT
O % #1020 . EasE = Oy endoy TT
mou JyFu Bujuaddey 3 usi ang - spuod PUROIE PELIaALP 3q pINOYS JBYY 8518 JOUNI S2eJINS S0E Apualina sy gound , andoy,

BV LLO96EY & BB dENS, 214 0226 (0)

1 seawes

uoIieIS OUILIEY Wol] B1BP UC| RdSUEnodRAR SIAIED = 013 BIUBIREY
(421e3940p) spucd [j2 puncJe Gli3s 0T 1o} Y23E3 pucd [BUOIIRPE = 12)E3 pliod 33alipy|
149183 5400T) V1) o kel ey (s)puod = yajea puod 338110
{0917 A3(2) uo|ieys FuiFed UMOLI|PRId U0 jiBJUIRY
{hoN-ouUNf) JMAY 15 [ARN-3Q) JMMY » T103=2100 T

yiuow uj sheg T

T Wendinseg  on
uwn|oy
80'02 90"k 6Z'TT £69'895'T 8'TT 9'12 035 0'es 0E6'819'7 6T'79 166'91€'8 s[RIl
00 o0 Bl 00 a 6 3 ETL ¥98'17 8T'0 £8T°000 [YAC] &a09 602 00T'P 7i9'r3 06'0 046'EVL CE FECITEREEH
oa oo oo a 13141 EERS gEV'E £0°0 B3p'eEs 06 18 17 985 6ETE £T'0 63.'33L 1€ sndny
o0 oo TsT o0 Q 96t 6L'T £65'T w00 £08'985 6L 0E'8 6'8 06T TS 200 694'83L 1€ Aine
oo o0 [iF4 oo a 27T as't ozT'FL o 005°71E 19'% 8L 8L 9E9'T S48y 8’0 aLe'ErL 0E Bunf
oo 0T 05 Qo ] oL £21 890°85 30 08TEIP 569 7e'9 ee 980T 8T6'0LT BE'T 196°E18 1 Az
FT 08T ¥1 3T § o0 €80 STT'0ET L0 €09'T0E 505 BS'Y 68'F LOE'PT EIP'ERE £E'S 01L'18L 0g dy
£t 0§t TE 81 ] oo 250 ¥BTLST e 961'L1Z  Y9'E i1 1€°€ $20'8F F95L5L €90 L9E'ETY i€ Yaen
St oSt L g1 s 00 w0 €5 €86'TLT LT4r4 SLO'TET 122 0% 10°C £86'08 284608 LT1r 96T'sEL BT Adenuged
ol 05T kel 8T 5 Q0 1£0 6'S LGE'PEL e 205'20T (41 95’1l 95’1 15055 rat'e9g LO'ZT (96'¢T8 1€ Adenuer
o0 BT 9E T 5 0 90 s ost'aye ¥t 051'E8 oyt LT LT v95'ay I6F'VEL 1Tot (95'¢18 153 Jaguiaseq
o0 [ T 8T 4 1] 680 Ty 00¥‘EST 0s't TET'BLT t144 £6'T 56T SETRE 210°0V8 0s'L OLB'ERL 0t Jagquianron
00 £ £0- 2T 4 'L 28 030 186°18 £9'0 £07'09T Y 95'E 96'E BTTEL TIZ0FT VE'E G9L'TIL 1€ 4840120
e e lowifgel fousie]  [ow/sken) Sy [dvipuened Y] T (ujen (e usiey (8 (oiey  (ow)  (edlmoy  sheq TR
Jids, sdeils =deiols sied 0y seFuy  Judjjeniay Bujisy  deag puoy bEIY] oyenfoy Oy endoy pued plod galy 20Uy uey wey  jejuiey  uow BAY
wo3 0338N uopiedp  ojalqe|ene |esedsig A1pu| pued i puod
Jeuciuppy  sAep JEuim 8T T £l (44 11 ot 6 8 L 2 € ¥ € 4 T
T 6T T LT 27

=0y wnB0I 10J 0¥ %
FLN3 4 = an|aj |Ind (s)pued =0y sndo Jo S0y
o't = [oa24ns puod) 2 sause 02'7 = galy deng
(Z'1-0'T 2q uea adues] 00'L = (spuejpocm) 7y or'a = JaRL QY Y2180 JRuipu
jeq =0de0)s HEIS S3128 790 & Y3323 3024|puj puod
uoseas [jejuled Jeah 00T FuLNp oulfsAep § =iajupa u| shep B S2JT8 §9'7 =7y Y23e] 19810 pued
sane /1 = gaje {esodsig 18 Jead pOTISauaY) e = j|egurey
{fude-300) shepajqe|iea Bupinp ABp/sayan) S0 =uad a3 3 pd¥ t57'97 = AMURY
20 = 43 uotpedu| pd? g8L'vE =dMav

ssuopdwnssy

Lioi/8zfs aeg

01212055y 73 BWO]

sanjes 3jwouo B [Enyae o) seje! [esodsp BSES.ILIING ‘T OMRUAIS SE AlNES - 7 OLIEUSIS
s3uR|eq J3EA 23RI0IS JUBNIYT SPUK AN



ZTOT Yie ©1 9107 1240330 W0y smop 3FEIENE = MMV

£T0Z BuULdS - yTOT Sp4B2A) AIBP ONddY Wosysmolk= Ty ARG
[ Janc {2Bei0)s yyuow snoinaid Jo pua+ IFeims o) 38u) Aue =0z |02 02
O=uW g TERRW [GT 103+ $0OT yIuow Ad = 6T[02 6T
1103-6T [03-ET|97 -2 {03 =8 1|62 91
0=19 5 H{Aepf.5 2 P ) 2uad 03 3ua jenuaiod , 91 03 = £T109 (]
32811l p|NO3 OW/SAEP § - BWINSSY "HjUOW /OT=sAep vjeJ T£=2T07/9707 2upnp huana jenuue JesA 00T BULNp 31001 0 BgejiEne shep uo paseq 97§07 91
{1 opeuass o) B 000'G € 40) 42 BLall/p1 99 = 61193 ST
7T/ (138 3} 5043k |RSOds| BT |03 'L URK) S53) uIRl ) 'D=trT (09 uayy ‘L3 uey) 9jeaid uied J = ¢T103 91
095EY/9Y'L/6 (02 = ETIOD ET
OSGEY/SP L/(610- TTI03+ 5100 + p|ad+g (@3} = ¢T 103 IT
O % 4E103 5 B2JE = OY andoy 1T
a0y 1481 Fujuaddey 3,us] 1ng - spuod PUNCIE PALIBAIP B PINCYS JEY] E3IE JOUNI 238N5 Pwos Auaina s yound andoy 01
8Y L0GGEY 4 P2sR dEA3, 2T/ (0726102 6
LB PWES §
| [ENUELY SUBPINS Y - janemaised [RAIUNIA PawEa8Y il Uejedtal) Woap B T« 011213 L
Uor3Es OUJWED Walj ejep uohendsusijodess SlIN (D = 013 32UsIajaY 8
{42183 %0 p) Spucd jje punoJe di43s 0T 404 4323 PUod JEUDIUPPE = Y33e] PUG WIEIIPY| §
(42182 3%007) wel , ease dod [s)puod = yajes pucd 2410 ¥
{091z 23] uepe)s BuiFed umala|ppld Waijjeuley €
{heN-2UNT) JAOY 40 (AB-2a0} SV « TIP2= 2100 T
JUoW Ul SABQ T
uond|iasag oN
uwinjos
§0'09 5T'1T 28 0 371 919 085 09 0E6'819'Y 61%9 1669186 siEjaL
00 00 6L (] 0 6 LT ET 0 810 a0y 0L9 809 503 00T [ICEE) D60 0L6ERL [ FECECER
00 00 9T 00 0 EvT 99'T Lo 0 £00 5IT'6ES €06 T8 128 285 5516 £T0 694894 1€ sndny
oo o0 Tsi- [t (] £ BL'T 90 0 o 208785 6L'6 05’8 &8¢ 06T ELS? 200 69£'89L 1€ Ainp
00 (] [eRAY oo 0 LA g5'T 8'a 1] o 005'¥15 198 8L 3 989'¢ Ses'TY BS°0 OL8'EVL CE sunr
[HD] 08 4 o0 ] oL LT 8T 1} 80 ogT'ely §6'9 e'9 [yl e80T GI6'0LT 8E'Z £96'ET8 ic hew
o' YL o't g1 g ao €60 o 0 LT £09'T0E SO0'5 BS'Y &8y LOE'VE EIY'ESE EE'S 014181 0t llidy
oq TEL ST 81 e o0 L9'0 £y Q e gep’L12 e g€ Ie'e 2T0'BY 885464 ES'0T LIG'ET 1€ YaleW
oo Lon Le 1 S 00 woe q'f Q €77 SLO'TET 1w T0¢ w0 L3608 T54'E08 LTI 96T'SEL 8L Aenigad
e '8 e 21 § 00 10 0's [ we 905'70L a1 95T s'r L5055 #5v'888 [cran L98'ETS 1€ Adenuer
00 Ly 8¢ 1 5 00 gz’ Exd 0 PO’z 0sv'e8 of't LET LT EER-1 16Y'PEL  TEOL L98'E18 i€ Jaquiasag
00 8T 6'T 81 H oo BE0 LE 0 08'T [43%:144 STT S6'T 6’7 SET'E TI0'0kS 8L 0LE'EVL 113 Jagueoy
00 o't S0 81 s 'l 880 080 €2 1] L0 £02'092 9E'F 95’ 96°¢ §2Z'ST 1rz'ore YE'E BIL'GGL 1€ 4800120
i owfdy  (gvlpueisd vl fawdaopu feugyes)  (awpulj (edjdeng (ujdead  {u)l3 T0j6i (eB] Goaes () [paga  (soqau)  (eBpaol  sked o
ds, EELTEN sdei0lg ad oy ajeduil Fy ey Fuj38py  deagpucq @N oyandoy DY endoy puod puod ey @duslejey ujey By JjEjuEY uow Fay
waoa o338 ucnedll| o) a|qejRAR jesodsig Jipu| puod  4g pucd
|eucilippy  sAep Jalu ST V1 £ a1 6 8 & 9 5 14 £ z T
oz 61 g1 LT £l
70 =0y anfos J0) 0Y %
je st = BWN|eA (N4 (s)puod saiae g = oY 2nd0d jo 530y
0Tt = (aaepns puod) 2y sa138 7'7 = ealy deng
{z'7-0'T2q uea @dued) 00'T = [spuejpoci) 2y ovo = PR} OY Y233 RAUIpY|
0 = mmw_nmm HES s2138 790 =y3e3 j2alipy| puad
uoseas {|ejuies Jesh 0T Butinp aw/siep ¢ =sa3p uf sAep B1| £24%8 §9'7 =0y Y938 133 AQ puUad
sane L1 = eaJeesodsiq (umoia|ppld 38 J23A 0O T)S2Y2U T 99 BT
(Iude-300) sAepagepens Bulnp Aep/sayaul 520 = uad o3 8y ped z52'92 = IANUAY
0 = 43 voliediu] pdd BELHT = dmav
ssuopdumssy
£102/8%/9 aieg

$9]E0SSY 1} BWIOL

youni ahBel, sjeujwija pue Aydie puod Je3s ng ‘2 01IRUAIS ST BWES - § O EUES
Bouk(eg 1938\ 2911035 UBN|YI SBuld JBAl



1TOZ Y2JRIA] 039107 1800130 WoL) SMOY) SFIBAR = JVSRY
2102 Bulds - pT0E SPIOdA) Ajlep ONddy Woly S/0)) = 4iay LERYIn

o1 Jara {a8es038 yuow snowmaid jo pua+ pBeinls 0} Jau) AUE =07 |02 GZ
Q=unu 'gT=xXBL IGT 03 + SO YIUOW ARIE = ET |03 BT

LLI09-§T 193-g 102 -2 1 192 =§T P2 §T

g =1 ouevanss ((Aep/ g7 paiinsse) dad o) 3L [eRua3ed , 91103 = LT 102 £T

81651141 PINCY QU/SARP § € BWUNSSY “UIMOW/GT=SARD UlRI T2 £102/370T Bupnp ‘JuaAa [enuue Jeak Qo T Bupnp Bull o1 s|qe|leae SABD UG paseq 91 j92 91

(1 opeuBas Joj pdd (0O'S € 40) 49 FNA/FTI0I = 5T 109 5T

ZE/(divaid-1 3}, 50008 [2s0ds|p=gT |00 ‘L3 UBYY 663] LIRL J! 0=pT |0 UYY 13 ueyy s33maal UjRd §i = FT102 ¢T
09SE/8Y'L/6 92 = €T (0D €T

QISER/GY L1509 TTI03+ § |02+ 7 (07 +Z[09) = 210D 2T

OU % 602, caue= oyonfoy TT

mou 3yBi Bujuaddey 1 us| Ing - spucd punoe padaNp ag piroys JRUY BB/ JoUnd BIBUNS WO AJUBIINI S| HOUnd nday. 01

F7 L4096 o BRIT URAD, 21/8(03= 6100 €

L SEBWES §

[BRLEBIA 23UBPING 1 - JB1Ematsent [BAIBUNIA PELEDEY G3M voreRiul, ol oy 34 L 01 =13 L
Uo[IeIs DLILED Woy elep uohendsueiadeas SIW1Y = 0313 2UaIARY 9

(Y2182 %40 SPUDH [)E PUNCJE 0UIS 0T 404 U23E0 puod [BUQIIPPE = YDe] puod J2alpU) §

Y3283 900T) URl . eal2 do) [s)puod = y3yes pued PauQ ¢

10912 A3|3) uopess FuB el usmozeipprd Woif ljzjuiey €

ino-eunf) SAMQY 10 (ARWN-220) IMARY o T107=2100 T

yuok ) sAeg T

oo
oo
oo
00
50T
0'sT
oSt
09T
£'1T
e
EE
0

mmmwwmmmnmnmaoooa

adesoyg

BT

uecidliasag op
U0
20°08 90'8Y 8211 7'hr [ 81 ERE) 0'95 '35 0S6'818'%  5T'v9  0O0'0ST'ET s|e3oL
6 SEL ECT 7t o g0 iaroor 0.9 60’2 602 00T’y TL9h9 060 000°050'T OF JequIsideg
£Vl S¥TT 91 A 0 £0'0 69p'6ES €06 18 14 ] 98§ (33 EL'0 000'620'T 1€ jsnany
96T Ee 6L'T o1 o 10°0 808'VBS  BL'S 068 68 -4 ELE'F 200 000'580'T 1€ Ane
A LEnt 85T 8T o [4%] 00S'YTS  19'8 €L 8L 959'T §L5'TH 850 000'050'T o auny
0L 5 L 4 0 8y'0 DBUSIY  §69 €9 €9 g£2'01 BI6'0LT  BEX 00S'T9t'T 1€ AN
0o 00 €60 3'E 0 0T £02'T0E 50§ [0 a5y LDE'PT EIY'ERE  EET 000'STT'T 0€ Judy
oo i) 190 s bl e b LT PI'E £ 1e'e §70'sy  8ES¢5L  ESOT  0OS'TLT 1% yen
00 000 0 s o e SLo'zEl  te'e 10T 10'2 16606 2eL's0F  LT'TT 0DD'0SO'T 8z Asenigag
00 0o 1€0 e 0 we 05201 T 951 95'1 £50's§ ¥S¥'RIE  LO'ET 005'29T'T 1€ Asenuer
[X:] 000 azo s 0 'L 0Sv'E8 or't L1 LTt v95'ay 16¥'FEL TTOT 005'291'L 143 Jaquadag
a0 900 &E'0 ER 0 05'T LR 412 56’1 §6'T SET'VE 2T0'0V5  06°L 000'050'T 0% Jaquiasan
Tt 380 08'0 €5 0 190 Loz'09z  9gw 96'E 36'€ 87251 TIE0PZ  FE'E 000'680'T 1€ JaqoRo
{ouize] EEC) ow/qy  [dv]pusniag €T [FRIEET] TaTdens  (u]id Taeig (ed) ussed (1ed) Go1e0  (sawau] [Edwely  sheq R
ajeBuy B enyy Bup3aN  deag puod 18N oy andoy Y snfoy puod B3ly  B0UDIB4BY ujey uey ey uow Bay
0} #|qe| ene _Nmsnw,_n_ L_ﬂ..: pucd :0 w—.Dm
shep Jequim g1 ¥T €1 [4 131 ot 8 H L a H b 3 4 T
91
70 =0y 8ndoi 0] 0N %
3¢ ST = swnjep ||nd (s)pued SB43E = Oy anBlod Jo selsy
Tt (azapne puod) 3y EETRLN Fard = ealy deng
(2'1-0'7 9q uea FBuel] 00'L = {spue|poom) 2 or'o =132/ OM 42323 P2upu|
®’Q =afeiols uels ELYECR ] = yajen Palpu| puag
Uoseas ||2juie) Jeah 0T Bulnp oWl fsABp § =dpu i sAep S s £9'7 =Y 1232 398410 pUOd
5398 4T = eale |esodsig {umoysippid 18 Jead 00T)S2uall T'%9 = [jejuiey
(Inde-320) sAep-iqejeae Buunp Aep/sauau) §2°0 =nlad 03 | pdd g0s'iE MY
20 = 447 uonedLy| pdd goG'sE =d4inayY
ssuo pdwinssy
L10z/27/9 21eq

5838|2085y @ BLOL
pde ppa'ss Jo (Paa) pap|sed 0} $Mal) 3seaau| Ihg ‘¢ OjJRUANG ST DIUES - { OEUBIS
dueiey Ja1ep adeiols Jan|3 sauld @A



LTOT Y21RiA 01 GTOT 8003100 W s RBRIBNE = SNV
2107 Buldg - 4107 5p/0934 Aflep ONddY W SMCH=IMAY U0

51 Jenc [affelays yuow shojazid Jo pua + sfei03s 01 U Aue =pZ (03 0T
Q=L G TEXEW [§T |03 + 507 Yauow Aaud = BT [0 6T
£1[02-CT [DFET02 -ZT193 =BT 193 1
0 =T ol/euaag {(Aep/, g 7' patunssa) 2ued a3 3|l 1g3ualad , 811033 L1103 LT
232811 pjNo3 OW/SARD § - € BWNSSY ‘yiuow/i=shep ujel T4=£102/9107 Bupnp Husns JEnUUR J23A 00T Bupnp i o1 B|gE{|RAR shep uo peseq 9T |03 8T
{7 ouewaas Jof pdd pOO'GE J0) 1o BU/pT 103 = ST IS 6T
Tr/ldipeud-1 3} .50008 jesodsip=y T (02 113 Uew) ssaf LjRd 3 i0=pT |03 usy3 ‘L3 ueyy dazeed uied 4 =¢T102 §1
095Er/8Y L/5 10 = €T|0D £1
0BG ER/BY £/16 102 - TT|D7 +5 03+ 710247 [99) = 21193 21
OY % 45 |02, RSB = QU AnEY TT
‘mau 3y Fupuaddey 1,usi g - spued puncJe pELBNAIR 84 PINDYS 3841 BRIR JOUNL 2384INS AILOS ARUBLING 8| ound, andoy, 0T
8 L0955k « PRIE dEADLZI/B 0226102 &
LSRBWES §
JENUBIA BIURPIND Yy - JOIRMBISRAN |BAI2IUNA PAWIBETY YA vopedil|, Wo D] N L0 =13 L
UDJIRIS OUWIED Wial) E1ED uoRy dsueijodess 5|IAHD = €41 BNSRYEY 9
(yanea 940y] spuod || punole da3s 07 Jo4 Y232 puod [EUCRIPPE = Y238 pucd 1324jpy| §
1yayes 4001 Ujed , e2le do [sjpuod = yaes puod 138410 ¢
{0912 ~2(3) uaryeys BuiBed UMOIS|PPId WOIL IB}UIRY E
IACI-BUNF) JPATY 10 (ARIN-DG) JMMY » T102=2100 T

yuow wsieg 1
T Gondusseg O
wn|ey
80'09 08 5T 1T 7'v8 0 271 9'18 0'98 0'ag 0€6'318'y ET'¥S  000'0ET'SD sjeioL
00 o0 oL 00 ] 76 €T 7T 0 810 I5T00F 049 609 K] 0017 TE9'vs 060 0000501 [3 Jeqiiaydag
0'0 o0 9T a0 0 YT 99'T o a €00 6o¥'6EE €06 178 8 985 5676 €10 000°580'T 1€ wndmy
] 00 Tyl oo o EX BLL 91T 0 100 g08°'¥35  6L6 08'F 68 [ £L5'Y 200 000'580'L 1€ Aing
o0 e T3 00 [} A $8°T 1 a Zro oos'pIs 19 €8'L 8L 989'C SL5'TY 850 000°050'T 0g sunf
00 6 T 00 0 oL LT &z G B0 037'sTF 569 7€ €9 98807 ET6'0LT  BET 005'297'T 1€ hew
a0 0'%1 60 L g 00 £60 TE [ Lo €090 €0°¢ BS'Y 68’y £0€'vT ETV'E8E  EES 0go'szT't 0% ety
oo 0'st 5'2 £z H 00 £50 ¥E o e 96b’L1e  vI'E TeE ®5e 820'5% 88645/ 601 0CE'Z9L'T 1€ Y2y
00 50T 92 8T H 00 o v's 0 £2'Z cuo'zEr 122 w0t 102 15605 784'508  LTTL GO0'0R0T 9t Asenigay
0o 6L £ a4 8 o0 L0 9 o w'e 206'701  EL'T 95'1 95'7 15058 ysv'ge  (0'TF COS'TINL 1€ Aenuer
e ER 81 g7 g 0'0 97’0 s o o'z csh'e8 09T Lt 2T pag'at 16¥'pEL  TTOT  008‘Z91T 1€ Jaquessg
c'o 1 1 :34 g 00 BE'0 L] 0 0s'T TET'BTL ST SE'T 6T gER'pe 710098 0§'L 000°080'T o Jaquanan
0'0 0’0 ELN 82 8 3 08'0 £€ 0 190 L0209 9T'R 36'E 96'E 87251 TIEOYT  PE'E ap0'430'T 1€ 429010
3¢] {olifshep]  owjdv  (vIpuEwed Ex] [FEACEN] Tsuened) sayau) Yumes  (eeuoup  (edmel}  sAed GO
A4S, 8881015 aFelolg aupd ey aedil)  Bu ey dupEn  den3 puod BN ouandoy oy endoy puag puad BRIy @ousiEssy utey uey  peuEy  uow By
wo3 op3aN uohjedul)  oyajgEIRE jesadsig Jpuipuod N puod
| Jeuopippy  SARp J33UIM ¥ 3 44 T o1 H 2 L El 5 1 € z T
ot 61 8T LT at

0 =0y endod Joj OY %
FLE 24 =awnjop (ind (s)pued ECYE TR =0y anfou josaaay
o't = (azepns puod) 3y saie 7L = easy deng
(z'7-0'T 2q ued sdued} 0O'T = (spugjpoam] 3y oro = 1384 Y Y23 13NPY|
0 =afeiojs peig sauae ip'0 = Y3383 BpY| pUOd
soseas |[eyujed Jeah 00T Fupnp owl/fshep § =sa3upm u) sdep Fudg salie §9'7 =0 4218] 3381iQ pUtd
S8UE [T = BaJE |2sods; (umo3aipptd 18 1B3A pOTIsaYY] T2 [ejuiey
{ide-300) shep'ajg e ehe BuLnp Azpfsaysul GT0 ERTEL IR PeB Q0§'LE = MY
20 = 43 uonediu| pd8 000°5€ = JMay

ssuapdwnssy

L10Z/82/2 Meg

S3)B|20S5Y ) EWEL
TUISS jo pealsU| 0w/ 01 SARpP LRSI IBIUM 8sEa13U] 1Y ‘y ojiEualg se ales - Wi ojIeuans
sauz(eq jale afe10)s Juaniyd sauld 1Al




River Pines WW Flows

Date:
2011 EOM
Month Q.(gal) rain (in)  Disp {(gal) PondH
Jan 660,700 0.8 1015000 9.8
Feb 609400 2.8 700000 10.4
Mar 555400 5. 455000 12.1
Apr 665000 0.4 665000 11.8
May 701900 2.2 875000 105
Jun 671600 1 945000 9.4
Jul 740300 0 1085000 7.9
Aug 766800 0 1085000 6.5
Sep 728600 0 840000 6.3
Oct 768900 1 720000 6.5
Nov 597500 0.9 570000 6.8
Dec 694100 Q 682000 fd
Avg 803083.3
EOM
2012 Q{gal) rain (in)  Disp (gal) PondH
Jan 784600 3.2 565000 8.5
Feb 593400 13 480000 8.6
Mar . 663600 5.3 360000 10.5
Apr 684400 2.8 660000 10.8
May 720800 0.2 810000 9.6
Jun 701400 0 9500000 8.1
Jul 770500 0 780000 7.4
Aug 793700 Q 810000 71
Sep 738300 0.1 680000 7.1
Oct 739400 1.4 696000 7.6
Nov 741800 25 450000 9
Dec 778200 6.4 450000 10.7
Avg 636750
EOM
2013 Q{gal) rain (in}  Disp (gal) PondH
Jan 647600 0.5 750000 9.9
Feb
Mar 711100 0.5 720000 9.5
Apr 660600 0.4 660000 9
May 737000 0.8 690000 85
Jun 809800 0 840000 7.6
Jul 822800 0 840000 7.5
Aug 887900 0 840000 75
Sep 733000 0 840000 7
Oct 628400 4] 620000 7
MNov 750800 0 540000 74
Dec 750600 0 570000 7.3

EOM
Pond gal

EOM
Pond gal

EOM
Pond gal

ADWF (June-Nov) =
AWWF (Dec-May)=

ADWF (June-Nov) =
AWWF (Dec-May)=

ADWE (June-Nov) =
AWWTF (Dec-May)=

712283 gpd
647750 gpd

747517 gpd
705017 gpd

772117 gpd
701380 gpd



Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec

Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec

Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec

2014 Q (gal)
608200
603300
627100
762500

838700
809100
838300
717200
663300

2015 Q (gal)
696300
623200
765600

. 745200
597300
663800
589700
601500
601700
675300
654400
706800

2016 Q (gal)
692800
625100
692000
745200
647800
659600
782500
783200
703700
764300
779800
739500

rain (in)
0
6.9
4
0.4

0.6
1.8

rain (in)

0
5.79
0
0.75
0.4
0.13
0.1
0.1
0

1
55
175

rain {in)
7.25
125
8
0.75
0.3

659166.7

EOM
Disp (gal} PendH
180000 83
300000 10
420000 10.5
720000 9
840000 7.3
0 7.3
a 83
0 85
0 9
EOM
Disp {gal) Pond H
930000 9
630000 8.5
0 9.2
0 10
0 105
0 10.2
0 10
450000 92
300000 8.2
780000 8
570000 8.7
450000 9.8
EOM
Disp (gal} PondH
390000 11
810000 11
450000 121
510000 11.8
510000 11.5
900000 9.5
900000 8.5
900000 74
900000 6.7
21000 8.7
630000 95
390000 111

EOM
Pond gal

EOM
Pond gal

EOM
Pond gal



EOM EOM
2017 Q(gal)  rain(in) Disp(gal) PondH  Pond gal

Jan 941000 24 1797700 13.7
Feb 804300 19.8 1921300 14
Mar 696900 4.86 1546100

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec



'rf%}g’ FH UFL{\H ‘f Y

\ XL o
TN 4 {AIR AND N7
— O VACUUM\RELE. SE__»
- -3 ASSEMBLY it
SE(R) {1 o
PN ALY gy
O O
EV‘\BH
s L
RN BOULDER {
““'@""‘-“"é‘@“ % R DISPOSAL @ “Ta
AREA 9&,
- D
2 - =— "a ==X = el ey )(‘--. ?‘r) }"
\50’~o“ BUFFER
PROVIED CONC. ENCASEMENT, {5040
100" EACH SIDE OF CREEK. P



River Pines PUD — Water Balance Report

Soils data relating to effluent disposal

1. The soils in the area of the RPPUD disposal system are classified as Sierra very rocky coarse sandy
loam, (SkD). Some shovel work in their disposal field area and review of nearby cut slopes generally
confirmed this. This classification can then be used to translate estimated permeabilities into actual
loading rates for estimating some amount of efflyent disposal to deep percolation (on days allowed to
irrigate per the WDRs).

2. Within this SkD classification, surface soil permeabilities (“moderate”) are estimated to be .8" to
2.5” /hour, and subsurface permeabilities (“moderately slow”) are estimated to be .2”-.8" per hour per
the Amador County SCS Soil Survey. The slower of these {say .5”/hour) would control any potential
deep percelation disposal on the River Pines site.

3. Allowable daily percolation rates can be estimated by taking 4%-6% of the above rates (per “Irrigation
with Reclaimed Municipal Wastewater — A Guidance Manual”, page 8-15). If 5% was assumed:

Allowable deep perc = .05 x .5”/hour x 24 hours/day
= 6" /day to deep perc (on days ok to irrigate)

For water balance — use .25”/day on allowable days (conservative)



Work Plan and Operations & Maintenance Plan
For
Improved Runoff Controls at the River Pines WWTP Sprayfield
Per CVRWQCB Letter dated 6/18/2017
luly 14, 2017

Amador County, CA




River Pines PUD
July 13, 2017

(Report in response to CYRWQCE letter of 6/16/2017 regarding a Workplan and O&M plan for
implementing improved runoff controls on the RPPUD existing sprayfield)

1. Per the CVRWQCB letter of 6/17/17, the River Pines PUD is required to submit the following to the
Regicnal Board by 7/15/17:

“A workplan to install runoff controls in the land application areas to comply with Discharge
Specification B.3 of the WDRs which requires: The discharge shall remain within the designated disposal
areas at all times.” These improvements may also include measures to prevent run on and inundation of
the sprayfields.”

“An Operations and Maintenance Plan for the runoff controls in the workplan required above. 4

2. The only sure fire method of keeping any effluent from leaving the disposal area would be to never
irrigate during the rainy season. As demonstrated within the June 2017 water balance report however, it
is not possible to do this-some winter irrigation needs to take place to keep the storage pond from
spilling or encroaching into its freeboard. So assuming that River Pines has to irrigate during the winter
— the question then becomes how to best insure that no effluent leaves the disposal area as required by
the WDR’s. Several alternatives were considered.

3. Given the location of their storage pond (vertically and horizontally), it’s not feasible to have a
tailwater return system as many effluent disposal areas have. It might be possible (but highly
impractical and difficult to operate and maintain) to have a tailwater collection system below the
sprayfields, but it would collect to a spot that would need to be pumped back to the storage pond. And
there’s the added possibility that a down gradient ditch, check dam and return pump would callect
unwanted runoff or perched groundwater that would only add unwanted water to the storage pond.
This option is not recommended.

4., Currently, there is a 100 buffer along Little Indian Creek between the creek and the edge of their
disposal fields. The spray heads at the 100 foot line are supposed to be half circle heads spraying away
from the creek. The District needs to do several things here to be sure this area is operating as
designed. One-they need to make sure all these heads are indeed haif circle heads and spray away from
the creek. Two-they need to make sure all the heads in the fields along the creek are operating
properly, as a clogged head or a partially clogged head would force more effluent to other heads and
may tend to overload certain areas and lead to saturated conditions or runoff. Three — they need to be
sure the control valves to the 3 fields along the creek all open fully and shut fully. If a control valve did
not shut fully — in these lower fields — the field would get water every time their irrigation pump went



on. In fact — this may be occurring now. If this was occurring — a field with a valve not fully shutting
would for sure get overloaded and run off. Four —all sprayheads in RPPUD disposal area need to be
checked and repaired or replaced as necessary.

5. The possibility of installing upgradient surface water diversion ditches around the disposal field was
considered-but the topography just doesn’t work for this idea. It would not only not work — it may
create more problems than it was intended to solve. This option is not recommended.

6. The next option considered to improve sprayfield operation would be to install soil moisture
tensiometer(s) in the sprayfield area. Normally, tensiometers assist farmers on when to irrigate crops,
but they can also be used in reverse. As seen on the attached, Rainbird makes a tensiometer that can
have an upper setting {saturated conditions) that will prevent a control valve from opening if soil
moisture is above a preset level. Intuitively, it would be likely the tensiometers in the lower fields
{closer to the creek) would likely experience more frequent conditions not conducive to irrigating, and
thus those valves would not open. Also, a simple series of inspection wells (maybe 1 or 2 per field - like
those utilized for monitoring certain individual onsite disposal systems) be installed. A sample detail of
this inspection well is attached, and it makes it real quick and easy to see where winter perched
groundwater may or may not be. It is recommended both of these improvements be done soon. What
these simple “wells” do is a double check on the tensiometers. If you take a cap off and water is at the
surface — not a good time to irrigate, so hopefully the tensiometer is saying the same thing.

7. It is recommended that the River Pines operator make regular inspections (at least bi-monthly) of the
disposal field in the winter to insure all is operating as it is designed. Because of the heavy trees and
brush —it’s difficult to see any of this without walking/driving through the disposal areas. Things like
checking that all fields are getting water, there are no saturated areas that may lead to runoff, noting
which fields may be taking water better than another field and making loading adjustments as
necessary. It would be recommended that detailed records are kept of weekly flows to each field, as
this will help adjust flows to most efficiently dispose of effluent.

8. The RPPUD will shortly be conducting a “pilot study” to determine the extent they are able to
increase flows to their disposal field. The results of this study will help the District more efficiently drain
their storage pond fully in a timely manner. This in turn will allow the District to operate their
sprayfields in the most efficient manner and not get into “panic mode”, which can lead to runoff
situations.

9. The RPPUD needs to keep vegetation in the sprayfield down to a level where all spray heads can
distribute as they are designed to, and it’s easy to get around the disposal field in a pickup. This will
improve inspections and make maintenance way easier. Heavy vegetation is good to a point for ET
purposes, but if gets too thick, it can definitely lead to saturated and nuisance conditicons.



Workplan:

a) Install soil moisture tensiometer(s) and simple inspection wells in each of the 7 fields as
recommended above and as attached. Work with engineer and manufacturer to install in
locations that make sense for River Pines and to be most effective in controlling flow to each
field. Start up and trouble shoot tensiometer settings to the point that it all seems to be
working logically.

b) Check all spray heads and control valves to insure all operating as original designed. Replace
or repair anything that isn’t working at 100%.

c) Work with results of upcoming “pilot study” to adjust flows up from current settings. This will
have to be coordinated between the SCADA system operator, the River Pines WW operator and
the engineer.

d) Get vegetation under control as noted above and improve access for a pickup truck.

Operations and Maintenance Plan:

a) Set up sheets to record daily flows to each disposal field. This should be doable with current
SCADA system setup.

b) Also on these sheets, have a spot to note levels in inspection tubes; (dry, 2" down, water at
surface, etc).

¢) On same sheets, note tensiometer settings, and if they have prevented a field from getting
flow. If a field is getting flow and seems too wet-adjust set point.

d} Make bi-monthly inspections for items noted above and record all on one sheet. Also note
any unusual or nuisance conditions, and pass this information along as required.



RAINIBIRD

SMRT-Y Soil Moisture Sensor Kit

The SMRT-Y Scil Moistura Sensor kit

adds closed-loop feedback Lo irrigation
systems, conserving water through digital
rmeasurement of the soil's volumelric water
conlent. The sensor Llakes soil moisture
readings every 10 minutes, When the sensor
detects dry conditions prior Lo the normal
walering cycle, thal gycle is allowed. When
Lhe seil is above the sel moisture threshold,
the watering cycle is suspended to avoid
overwatering.

Key Benefits
- Turns any controller into a water saving
smart controller

Healthier landscapes less prone to nutrient
depletion, fungus and shallow root growth

- Typical water savings exceed 40%

- Primary components (sold as kit):
- In-Ground Soil Moisture Sensor
- Sensor User Interface

TDT digital sensor enables highly accurate
readings that are independent of soil

temnperature and electrical conductivity (EQ

- Displays soll moisture content, soil
lemperature and EC

SMRT-Y

User Interface

Controller

Advanced TDT Digital

Soil Moisture Sensor

- Sensor uses Time Domain
Transmissometry (TDT) and digital signal
processing to measure soil moisture
content accurately and consistently

+ Corrosicn-resistant in-ground sensor
made of high grade 304 stainless steel

. Nomainlenance sensar - just bury and
forget

. Reads absolute — rather than relative -
Volumetric Water Content (0-100%)

- Meoisture readings remain stable as soil
salinity and temperature change

- Sensor never needs calibration

User Interface with LCD Readout

. Touchpad keys with digital LCD readout
displays:
- Absolute Volumetric Water Content,
0-100%
- Soil temperature in Fahrenheit ar Celsius
- Soil conductivity in dS/m
- Seven-cycle irrigation history
- Suspended/allowed watering indicator
- Bypass mode indicator

. Automatic moisture threshald setting with
increase/decrease adjustment

- Sensor bypass touchpad key for easy
deaclivalion

- Up to two independent zones can be
isolated from sensor

- Designed for cutdoor installation

Optional
|

Valve Box

Cap Wire

Cannectors § |

Tech Spec

-

o~

HowToSpecify :

SMRT-Y

Model
SMRIT-Y  Soll Maisture Sensor Kit
SMRI-YI International Soil Meisture Sensor Kit

o

Soil Moisture Sensor

|
|
|
i SMRT-Y
|



Operating Specifications

- 75 Volis ACat 12W

- Operaling temperature range:
-A°F to 158°F ((20°C to 70°C)

= Survival temperalure range:
-A0°F 1o 185°F (-40°C to 85°C)

- UL, CUL, CTICK certifications

Dimensions

Sensor Control

- Overall Width: 3.0" {76mm)

- Overall Height: 3.0" (/6mm}
- Overall Depth: 0.75" {(19mm)

in-Ground Soil Moisture Sensor
(without wires)
Overall Widlh: 2.0" (5Gmm)
+ Qverall Length: 8.07 (200mm)
- Overall Depth: 0.5" {12mm)

SMRT-Y Kit

Includes

- Controller User Interface

= In-Ground Soil Moisture Sensor
Anodized, rust-proof screws, 1.5
{lwo per package)
Wire nuts - 5 blue, 2 gray, 1 yellow

- Mullilingual instruclion manual, “Quick
Start” Guide and sticker thal reads: "This
contraoller is connected to a Rain Bird Sail
Moislure Sensor”

WaterMark™

Technical Specifications

The SMRT-Y Scil Maoisture Sensor shall be
a watering control device for use with a
standard 74-Volt ACirrigation controller.
it shall fake digital readings every 10
minutes of soil Volumetric Waler Content
(VWQ) utilizing advanced lime Domain
Transmissometry (TDT) digital signal
processing that delivers accurate readings
independent of svil temperature

and electrical conductivity.

It shall consist of a 304 stainless steel digital
Saoil Moisture Sensor and a User interface. In
opertation, the SMRT-Y Soil Moisture Sensor
shall only allow a programmed watering
cycte when the soil moisture drops below a
set moisture thrashold. When the moisture

LEVEL

"t Qs 22 Q

(7 = SUSPENDED

Operating Principle

RaAIN I BIRD

is above that threshuold, the SMRT-Y Soil
Muoislure Sensor shall suspend the narmal
watering cycle by interrupting the common
line to the valve solenoids.

Features shall include autornatic selling

of soil moisture threshold with increase/
decrease adjustment as well as bypass mode,
User inlerface shall enable instant readings
of sail molsture, lemperature and electrical
conductivity plus review of 7-cycie watering
history. The SMRT-Y Soil Moisture Sensor
shall be sold by Rain Bird Corporalion.

& Watering
& SUSPENDED
;g:

<+ Watering

% ALLOWED

2+ 220

When sail maisture is above the preset threshold, the imigation cycie is suspended.
When moisture falls below that level, the regular watering cycle is allowed.

Rain Bird Corporation
6991 East Southpoint Road
Tucson, AZ 85756

Phone: (520) 741-6100
Fax: (520) 741-6522

Rain Bird Technical Service
{&00) RAINBIRD [1-800-724-6247}
{U.S. and Canada)

‘Registered trademark of Rain Bird Corparation
“Rain Bird Corporation  15AU13

Rain Bird Corporation

970 West Sierra Madre Avenue
Azusa, CA91707

Phone: (626) 812-3400

Fax: (626) 8123411

Specification Hotline
800-458-3005 (US. and Canada)

Rain Bird International, Inc.
1000 West Sierra Madre Ave.
Azusa, CA91702

Phone: (626) 363-G311

Fanc: (626) 852-7343

The Intelligent Use of Water™
www.rainbird.com

DAD52Y



USE SPOILS FROM

/— DITCH FOR BERM

=
5
8
-

8" DIA,
MAX. T ;

REMOVABLE GAS—TIGHT sSLIP cap

4" PVC PIPE (NON-—PERFORATED)

JOIN PIPES v/
SEALED UNION

LH

FILTER FABRIC T

(8 §)

2 5" DRAINROCK

UR REFUSAL

4" PERFORATED PVC PIPE
OR SOLID w/ saw SLOTS @
2" Dt

[T

MIN,

4!

7y =T
(R TR NI R
' COYDAAL e
BEDROCK OR

MDD s s
h"ﬁ':’_‘s_ YIS : =

MONITORING WELL
MONITORING WEL|

NOT TO Scalg

Ly o



| abed

L0l gy SUN02Y - Q0041
00°09¢ - paysodapun - 00021
L€l '@y SUNo29Y - 000LL
LL'E0L oy Sjune2oy - 000LL
LL€0L @y SJUN0OOY - 000 L
00°04¢ - pausodapun - 000Z}
G9'L01 gy SJUNo2dY - 0001 L
117201 '8y SUNO22Y - 0001
c8clh gy SUNo92y - 000L1L
G6°L01 ey SUN029Y - 0001 L
00°00% - payusodapun - 000Z L
§9'20L '3y SJUN02DY - 0004 L
§9°201 oy Sjuno22Yy - 00011
LL20L @y SJuUNo29Y - 000LL
00°0LL + pausodapun - 000ZL
G9'L0L gy SJUN020Y - 000} |
96°0L @y SJUNo22Y - 000} L
00°0S¢ " payisodapun - 000Z L
G9°L01 gy SUNo22Y - 000 LL
68201 gy SUN093Y - 00011
098 U@y SUN0O0Y - 000L L
00’002 - paysodapun - 000Z1
§9'201 '@y SJUN020Y - 000L L
G901 "9y SJUNo22Y - 000L L
00°08¢ + paysodapun - 000Z1
89°L0L ey SJUNo22Y - 000L 1

— 78601 @y SJUN0ODY - 0001 |
PLL 2y SJUNo22Y - 0001
66601 '@y Sunod2y - 000k}
00°00¢€ "+ pepsodapun - 00021
=—C6'Cl| @y SIUN02%Y - 000 L
- /8CLL oy SUN020Y - 000L L
oLzl "9y SjunoddYy - 0001 L

— ¢l '8y SiunoddyY - 000LL
00'0S2 " paysodapun - 000Z1
==0LCl ey Sjunoddy - 00011
¥8°0L ey Sjunocody - 0004 L
- £8°ZLI ey sjunoddy - 000L L
00°05¢ "+ paysodapun - 000Z |

= [9CL) ey Sjunoddy - 00011
8F'6 ey sjunoddy - 000+
-~ LTl -2y SUN020Y - 000 L1
00°052 * paysodapun - 00021
b ° A Y '@y SJUN020Y - 000L L
96°L '@y SuNo22Y - 000L |
00'052 * paysodapun - 00021
-8 @y SuNo22Y - 0001 L
~== Gl¢Cl '@y SJUN022Y - 00011

junowy JUNo2oY

HOL W3ll YAN3DV

G1L02/0E/¥0 ghiee 30|0AU|
GLOE/Le/s0 142 uswied
GL0Z/LEIGO Logee 8010AU|
G102/0€/90 188¢¢ 32|0AU|
GL0g/LE/LO 0reee 9010AU|
$10Z/£0/80 0z JuewAed
§L0T/LE/B0 809¢e a0l0AU}
§10¢/0¢/60 100%¢ a0I0AU|
§10¢/1z2/0l LELYE 3210AU|
GL0g/1E/0L 96E¥e 82I0AU|
GLOZILLILL 6.¢ juswAed
GL02/0E/L 68.v¢ S0l0AU|
GLoeg/LER ) 79162 ao|0AU|
910eg/LE/Q 6055¢ 3010AU|
910¢/20/20 ESIA JuswAed
910¢/6¢/20 €/89¢ a0I0AU|
gloeree/eo 11652 a0|0AU|
a102/62/c0 esiA awAied
910¢/1E/€0 See9e a0I0AU|
910zZ/0g/¥0 L¥GL9 S0I0AU|
910Z/€Z/G0 ¥¥919 S010AU|
9102/ve/s0 ESIA wawhed
9102/1€/50 26819 B010AU|
910¢/0€/90 2€2co 3010AU|
910¢/LZ/L0 ESIA JswAied
9L0¢/LE/L0 71929 2010AU}
9102/1£/80 1629 a0|0AU]
910z/12/60 £60€9 8010AU|
910¢/0t/60 £GEE9 8010AU|
9L0Z/EL/0L ESIA wawAied
910¢/1€/01 904£9 2010AU|
9102/0€/L L CLO0¥9 9210AU|
glLogsie/ct GL1P9 8210AU|
alog/Lerel zZerv9 82|0AU|
/102/€0/10 ESIA wswAied
LLOT/LE/LO ?9.¥9 39010AU|
L1L0T/LE/20 18879 a210AU]
£L102/8¢/20 (o) 451 2210AU|
£102/L0/€0 esiA JuswAed
LLDZ/LEIE0 8.¥59 8910AU|
£L102/12/¥0 #9559 2010AU|
L102/0€/%0 £6459 90I0AU|
L1L0Z/¥0/50 i usWwAed
£102/1€/50 #8199 a210AU|
£L102/12/90 68299 9210AU|
L102/L2/90 esin JuUsWwAed
L102/0€/90 €599 9210AU|
L10Z/LEILO 12899 a210AU|
ayeq wnpy adAL
LV

uonoesuel] ||v

Jo13sIa AN 21gnd sauld J9AlY



